WALKER

ANNUAL REPORT 2017%/2016 &




Contents

A 8

13

24

29

41

43

44

45

47

48

49

119

Corporate Information

Financial and Operational Highlights
Management Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance Report
Biographical Details of Directors
Report of Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary

01

REEH
MBEREERE

EEENRRDT

BYZBERE
mEWER

REZTEWER
REBBRRER
REEREER

3

3k
op

RERER

&2

REMBRRMEE
TFEMBHRE

Annual Report 2015/2016
2015/2016 FF 1



Corporate Information

NAEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman) (Appointed on 3 February 2016)
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (Resigned on 26 April 2016)

Mr. KIU Wai Ming (Resigned on 26 April 2016)

Mr. HUNG Tin Chun (Resigned on 24 February 2016)

Mr. KANG Jianming (Appointed on 3 February 2016)

Mr. WANG Lingxiao (Appointed on 24 February 2016)

Ms. CAl Jiaying (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. YIN Wansun (Appointed on 19 May 2016)

Non-executive Director

Mr. CHEN Mingzhong (Appointed on 24 February 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Jianzhong (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Dr. HE Chengying (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. HU Jinxing (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Ms. ZHAO Hong (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Resigned on 1 April 2016)
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman) (Appointed on 1 April 2016)
Dr. HE Chengying (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. HU Jinxing (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Resigned on 1 April 2016)
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. CHEN Jianzhong (Chairman) (Appointed on 1 April 2016)
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Appointed on 3 February 2016)

Ms. ZHAO Hong (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Nomination Committee

Dr. HE Chengying (Chairman) (Appointed on 1 April 2016)
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Appointed on 3 February 2016)

Mr. HU Jinxing (Appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung (Resigned on 1 April 2016)

Walker Group Holdings Limited
BEESETRBER QA 02

BEEg

HITES

REFERA(L/E)(R2016F2 53 HEZ(E)
BREE L+ (2016 F4 26 HFHE)
BHEALE A (R 2016 F4 /26 HFHE)
HREFRHE(R2016 E2 5 24 HEHF)
BERRRSE (R 2016 E2 5 3 HEZ(F)
TEBRA(R2016 F2 H24 HEZ(E)
BUERL L (R2016 F4 51 HEZE)

BR B (R2016 F5 H 19 HEZ(T)

FHITES
RIS RS (R2016 F2 F 24 HEZ(F)

BYFBITES

BRIEF S A (R 20164 1 HEST)
B+ (R 20164 5 1 HEZ(F)

IR E K4 (20164 5 1 HEZE(F)
Hihz (2016 F4 A1 HEZ(T)
SBYEA(R2016F4 H 1 HEHE)
ERHB T KT (R20164F 44 1HEHT)
IR A (R 2016 4 F 1 HEHE)

EEZEE
BEREEE

IR+ (FE)(R2016 F4 5 1 HEZ(F)
BB+ (R2016E4 5 1 HEZ(F)

IR E S (R 20164 5 1 HEZ(F)
SBY LA (R2016E4 H 1 HEHT)
SBRHE LT RFAL(R2016F 4 4 1 HFFE)
TS A (R 2016 4 F 1 HEHT)

FHEES

PREEFP A (L) (R2016F 4 51 HEZ(T)
REEF 4 (R2016 F2 H3 HEZEE)
WL+ (2016 F4 A1 HEZ(T)

PREE L+ (R2016F4 H 1 HEHE)

e T KT (R2016 F4 5 1 HEHF)
SBEEA(R2016F4 5 1 HEHE)
IS A (R 2016 F4 F 1 HEHE)

REZEE

AT (EE)(R2016 F4 51 HEZ(TF)
REEE LA (R2016 F2 H3 HEZ(E)

AR E S A (R2016 F4 H 1 HEZ(E)
SBYEA(R2016F4 5 1 HEHT)
SEROELEARFH LT (R2016F4 41 HFIT)
ISR A (R 2016 F4 5 1 HEHT)



Corporate Information

NAEER

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (Resigned on 26 April 2016)
Mr. KIU Wai Ming (Resigned on 26 April 2016)

Mr. WANG Lingxiao (Appointed on 26 April 2016)
Ms. CHONG Lai Chu (Appointed on 26 April 2016)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHONG Lai Chu

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Hang Seng Bank Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR (AS TO HONG KONG LAWS)

Howse Williams Bowers

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

7th Floor

Hope Sea Industrial Centre
26 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1386

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.walkershop.com.hk

03

RERE

PR E L+ (2016 £ 4/ 26 HEiHF)
BHRRSE A (R2016 F4 5 26 A B#HF)
FETHRA(R2016F 4 526 HEZ(T)
BT (R2016 F4 H26 HEZ(F)
NEWE

Bt

FEAERBIT
BAERITERAA

B ED

B CRUK B G AT RD =R P
-

ERER(FRERE)
I ZHRERTT

GRS

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BB N E
a5

BN

& AT 26 5%

EETIESD

71

FTEROBFETRE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

BEERODBFEEIE

EEEFELAERAA
B

2R ARER1835
AL 2218

AR 5%

1386

NE AU
www.walkershop.com.hk

Annual Report 2015/2016
2015/2016 FF 7k



Financial and Operational Highlights

HMBEERRERE
For the year ended 31 March
HZE3HASIHLFE
% change
increase/
(decrease)
& CRd)
2016 2015 % 2 B
Revenue (HK$’million) Wz (g &E%5T) 841 1,091 (22.9%)
Gross profit (HK$'million) ER(FEET) 483 617 (21.7%)
Operating loss (HK$’million) KEEBE(FEET) (146) (85) 70.6%
Per share =14
Basic loss per share (HK cents)  SRXEAREREGE) (23.18) (14.02) 65.3%
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) H#EHE R (&) (23.18) (14.02) 65.3%
Net asset value per share (HK$) EIREEFE(ET) 0.34 0.59 (42.4%)
Share price I (B
— High (HK$) —=(Er) 2.360 0.760 210.5%
— Low (HKS$) — RCET) 0.425 0.340 25.0%
Financial ratios B #5 tb =
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 57.5% 56.6% 0.9 pt
Average inventory turnover (days) P& EEE(H) 238 217 9.7%
Average trade receivables turnover 15 [ Ui B 7 & 2 £
(days) (H) 4 39 5.1%
Average trade payables turnover 5[ (<8R 2 & HA
(days) (H) 105 88 19.3%
Gearing ratio (%) BEAGBHE(%)
— Borrowing to total assets — [EEHHBAE 11.0% 4.6% 6.4 pt
— Borrowing to net asset value — EEHEEFE 20.6% 6.9% 13.7 pt
Return on total assets (%) REEDR (%) (35.6%) (15.8%) 19.8 pt
Return on shareholders’ fund (%) BREEEEITR(%) (66.8%) (23.9%) 42 .9 pt
As at 31 March
M3AH31H
% change
increase/
(decrease)
&, CRd)
2016 2015 % 2 B
Shareholders’ funds (HK$'000)  BRES(T/87T) 218,685 365,174 (40.1%)
Total assets (HK$'000) fEE(TET) 410,328 552,015 (25.7%)
Number of shares in issue ('000) 317N EE (FAZ) 641,360 623,560 2.9%

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

The board of directors (“Board” and “Directors” respectively)
of Walker Group Holdings Limited (“Company”) presents the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016 (“Year”).

GROUP’S BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and
retailing of a diversified range of footwear products under its own
brands, namely, A+A2, ACUPUNCTURE, ARTEMIS, COUBER.
G, FORLERIA, TRU-NARI and WALACI through its self-managed
retail shops (“Self-managed Shops”), concession points in
department stores (“Concession Points”) and franchised stores
(“Franchised Stores”). The Group possesses an extensive sales
network across the regions of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), Hong Kong, and Taiwan. For online shopping, we also
offer the MORTTO and MY WALKER brands.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group operated a total of 43 Self-
managed Shops (5 in the PRC and 38 in Hong Kong), 546
Concession Points (531 in the PRC, 3 in Hong Kong and 12 in
Taiwan) and 111 Franchised Stores in the PRC. During the year,
the Group had a net decrease of 2 Self-managed Shops, 94
Concession Points and 25 Franchised Stores. The following table
summarizes the number and distribution of Self-managed Shops,
Concession Points and Franchised Stores (collectively, “Retail
Points”) in terms of geographical regions as at 31 March 2016 as
compared to last year.

BECSEERERAR(R2TINEEZ (D5
BIEEG M EE)EHESARTLENE
Nal(FEAEE])EHZE2016 F3A31HIEF
B REE ) 2 EBRGREEE -

SERKERE

AEBRFEEXEBAEREEEZTEE(AE
ED BEARETHER(HHFHER DK
BFHCLEH((STREES D ERREER
%R @ i A+A2 - ACUPUNCTURE * ARTEMIS -
COUBER.G * FORLERIA - TRU-NARI &
WALACIZ STBHEER - AEBHENKE
ZEEZ BMPEAREME(HE] - B
EhaEmE - BLEEDIE AEEITFRE

MORTTO X MY WALKER fah& -

MR2016F3 A31H » AEEKLEASH43MEE

JE(BEIMIA B N 38EUNEE) - 546 455
HER (531 M AR E - SRR EE R 127
REE) R B RR B 2 a5 - R
REE  AEBZEEE  FTHEERETL
BIEHEDPIER M - 94N 25/ o FRELMP
2016 F3 A1 HIZME S H v B &L - FFETiH
EREFEEER(GEIEEE D 2HE kD
MR L 7 LB o

As at 31 March R3H31H
2016 2015
Self- Self-
managed Concession  Franchised managed  Concession  Franchised
Shops Points Stores Total Shops Points Stores Total
Region e HEE  BIHEN BIHSKEER @zt BEE  RITHEE KOLEER @t
The PRC HE
Beijing IR 4 95 - 99 2 113 - 115
Eastern China 2R — 113 7 120 — 131 10 141
Southern China il 1 67 - 68 1 81 - 82
Western China i = 81 1 92 - 92 9 101
Central China Bl - 85 50 135 — 9% 70 164
Northern China 2 - 92 43 133 - 11 47 158
Sub-total I 5 531 111 647 3 622 136 761
Hong Kong Bk 38 3 — 4 42 4 - 46
Taiwan qig = 12 - 12 — 14 — 14
Total b 43 546 111 700 45 640 136 821
Annual Report 2015/2016
05 2015/2016 FF3f




Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

MARKET REVIEW

Fiscal year 2016 was a difficult year for retailers in China, as
global economy performance was weaker than expected, while
China’s economic growth also decelerated to a 25-year low of
6.9%', and growth in its total retail sales growth rate of consumer
goods dropped to 10.7%” from 12.0% in 2014. Volatility in China
stock market and depreciation in Renminbi further hit the already
soft consumption demand and retail market in China. Retail in
Hong Kong remained weak due to the low numbers of inbound
tourists. Also, inflationary operational costs, including wages and
rents, continued to burden retailers. All these factors inevitably
had a negative impact on the Group’s business.

Despite the challenging market conditions, the Group is
determined to transform and elevate itself, enhancing its
competitive strengths. Towards the later part of the financial year,
the management team outlined strategic plans underpinned by five
pillars: upgrade of product portfolio, optimisation of sales network,
expansion of e-commerce business, enhancement of customer
shopping experience and business diversification. It upholds a
clear mission to restore performance, raise profit margins and
maintain long term growth. Though it is still in the early stages
of implementation, the Group is confident that a strong and
sustainable business is being built for tomorrow.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded a decrease of 22.9% in its
consolidated revenue to approximately HK$841 million (2015:
HK$1,091 million). Revenue from the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan
markets decreased by 25.1%, 14.2% and 19.2% respectively. The
overall same store sales of the Group dropped by approximately
15.4% and the overall gross profit margin of the Group increased
by 0.9 percentage point to 57.5%. Its overall operating expenses
as a percentage of turnover increased by 10.5 percentage points.
Loss attributable to the equity holders was approximately HK$146
million (2015: HK$87 million). Loss per share amounted to
approximately HK$23.18 cents (2015: HK$14.02 cents).

The PRC

Revenue generated in the PRC was approximately HK$646 million
(2015: HK$864 million), representing a decrease of 25.1% as
compared to previous year. The operation in the PRC incurred a
loss of HK$32 million for the year (2015: HK$3 million).

Same store sales decreased by approximately 15.6% and
operating deficit to revenue ratio increased by 4.6 percentage
points as compared to last year.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Hong Kong

During the Year, the revenue generated in Hong Kong was
approximately HK$183 million (2015: HK$ 213 million),
representing a decrease of 14.2% as compared to previous year.
The operating loss in Hong Kong enlarged by HK$18 million,
representing an increase of 173.2% as compared to last year.
Same store sales dropped by approximately 14.4% while operating
deficit to revenue ratio increased by 10.8 percentage points to
15.8% as compared to last year.

Taiwan

For the Taiwan market, its revenue generated was approximately
HK$11 million (2015: HK$14 million), representing a decrease of
19.2% as compared to last year. The operating loss in Taiwan
increased by HK$0.6 million, representing an increase of 216.5%
as compared to last year. Same store sales decreased by
approximately 8.4% while operating deficit to revenue ratio raised
by 5.7 percentage points to 7.7% as compared to last year.

In response to the worsen market situation, the Group actively
implemented a number of measures to alleviate these adverse
impacts:

Product portfolio upgrade

The Group caters to the market by offering a wide spectrum of
footwear brands for customers’ selection. It strove to enrich its
product portfolio appealing to a more diverse customer base.
In March 2016, Walker Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire Design Management Hong Kong Limited,
which will provide services to the Group for a term of at least two
years. The founders of Design Management Hong Kong Limited
have extensive work experience with international footwear
brands and good knowledge of the PRC retail markets. The Group
believes that this acquisition will expand its shoe design and
production network and hence enhance the image of its brands
and improve its product quality. Also, it will lead to opportunities
with new business partners in Europe and the PRC as well as
bring in new business opportunities. As at the date of this report,
the transaction has not yet been completed.

Optimization of sales network and expansion of e-commerce
business

The Group positions itself as mid-end footwear brands, targeting
the rising middle class with strong consumption power. During the
Year, it strategically reduced the number of stores and offices in
certain locations in the PRC, especially in less developed cities,
with more focus on the operation of profit-making stores in affluent
cities in order to increase operation efficiency, reduce costs and
optimize its overall sales network.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

In view of the increasing popularity of online shopping, the
Group strengthened its e-commerce and 020 (online to offline)
strategies, offering the MORTTO and MY WALKER brands for the
middle-class and younger generation, who are the biggest online
spenders in the population. To enhance customers’ shopping
experience and satisfaction, customers are able to see the
samples and do shoe fitting in the store before purchase. This will
create synergic effects between its retail and online stores and
stimulate sales.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Position

The Group maintained a stable financial position throughout the
Year. It financed its operations with internal funding and bank
borrowings. During the Year, the Group disposed of two properties
located in Kowloon Bay.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$41 million (2015: HK$95 million) and outstanding
bank borrowings bearing a fixed interest rate of HK$5 million
(2015: HK$5 million) and a floating interest rate of HK$40 million
(2015: HK$20 million) with a maturity of less than one year, which
led to a net loan position of HK$4 million. The bank loans were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and New Taiwan dollars. As
at 31 March 2016, the current ratio stood at 1.9 times (2015: 2.8
times) and the gearing ratio stood at 11%. (2015: 4.6%).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately HK$113 million for overdrafts, bank loans for
trade financing and bank guarantees (2015: HK$179 million)
of which HK$55 million was used for trade financing and bank
guarantees as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$34 million). As at 31
March 2016, the Group had a charge on its assets to secure its
banking facilities.

During the Year, inventory turnover days increased to
approximately 238 days (2015: 217 days). As at 31 March 2016,
inventory amounted to approximately HK$223 million (2015:
HK$242 million).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
HK$12 million (2015: HK$18 million), comprising principally the
purchase of leasehold improvements, computer equipment and
computer software.

The Group believes that its current cash holding, cash flow from
operations and available banking facilities will be sufficient to fulfill
its working capital requirements and its financial position remains
sound for continuous operation and expansion.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Foreign Exchange Management

The Group operates principally in the PRC and Hong Kong and
its transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi or Hong
Kong dollars. The Group does not expect any significant foreign
currency risk and did not enter into any forward contract to hedge
its foreign exchange risk during the Year.

Potential Acquisition

On 22 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed
to acquire 100% interest in Design Management Hong Kong
Limited for a total consideration of approximately HK$13,000,000.
As at the date of this report, the transaction has not yet been
completed and is subject to certain conditions precedent as stated
in the Agreement. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2016.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investment
or acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies
during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2016, the Group pledged its land and building
and assets held for sale to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$21
million (2015: HK$24 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities or off-balance sheet obligations (2015: Nil).

Group Structure

During the Year, there was no material change in the corporate
structure of the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total of 2,463 employees
(2015: 3,004 employees) and the total staff cost for the Year was
HK$217 million (2015: HK$237 million), representing 25.9% of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees, including mandatory retirement funds,
insurance, medical coverage and purchase discounts. In addition,
incentive share options and performance-based discretionary
bonus on an annual basis may be granted to employees subject to
the Group’s and individual performance. The Group also provides
regular trainings and workshops to its frontline and back office
staff on sales techniques, product knowledge and team building.
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OUTLOOK

In 2016, the retail market remains challenging due to the slowdown
in the PRC economic growth and weak consumer sentiment.
However, ongoing urbanisation and improving living standards will
lead to more consumers trading up to mid- and high-end product
ranges in the long run. In addition, the “One Belt, One Road” (the
“OBOR”) initiative is expected to stimulate market demand and
thus creating business opportunities for the Group.

The Group is optimistic about the outlook of the footwear market.
In order to seize the market opportunities, it has been reacting
responsively to market trends, delivering products with better
functionality, quality and designs to consumers and backed
by effective business and marketing strategies to enhance its
competitiveness.

Re-branding of WALKER SHOP

The Group is currently entering an exciting new phase in its
brands WALKER SHOP which is a well-known footwear store in
Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan. The re-branding of WALKER
SHOP marks a renewed focus on products design and quality
aiming to offer its consumers with modern, fashionable and
comfortable shoes at an affordable price. Thus the Group has
redesigned the logo of WALKER SHOP to present a distinctive
image to reflect the new focus. This change ushers in a new era
for the Group, as we aim to become one of the top shoe retailers
in the industry.

Celebrity branding

The Group will continue to strengthen brand building effort by
adopting celebrity endorsement strategy with Ms. Grace Chan,
a renowned artiste, as its ambassador to promote the brands of
Walker Shop and ACUPUNCTURE in Hong Kong. It has proven
that celebrity endorsement has and will continue to increase
customers’ awareness and recognition, and boost its revenue.

Customer loyalty program and online marketing

To successfully manage its brand and customer loyalty, the Group
has upgraded its VIP programme by offering more shopping
privileges to its VIP customers. Moreover, it continues to use
social media platforms, such as Facebook, WeChat, Weibo, and
mobile app to promote its brands and products. With the use of
these channels, it aims to enhance its marketing capability and
expand customer base.
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Brand portfolio diversification with a focus on high potential
markets

The Group will continue to optimize its product portfolio with
international and diverse brands under a multi-brand strategy
and products with leading-edge designs to enhance its brand
image, maximise its consumer reach and lead to more customer
satisfaction. The Group’s brands are targeting the mid-end market,
with a focus on tier-1 and 2 cities in the PRC, which are powered
by the rise of upper-middle-class and affluent households. With its
strategic efforts on stores located at prime locations, it is believed
that the overall store performance will be improved. In addition,
the Group will continue to seek new business partners in Europe
to explore new business opportunities.

Enhanced customer shopping experience

The Group understands that retail innovations are crucial
nowadays when the market competition is intensifying. As such,
the Group aims to offer its customers with quality merchandise
and customer oriented services, as well as a convenient and
comfortable “one-stop” shopping environment. To this end, it
entered into an Memorandum of Understanding with its business
partners in April 2016 to establish a joint venture to upgrade
and transform the Group’s existing 600 plus retail points in the
PRC and open up large scale of lifestyle stores to bring forth
entirely new one-stop online and offline experience to customers.
Elements to add will include but not limited to the introduction of
famous Italian football club, say A.C. Pavia, and player-related
products as well as high-end sports car brand related products,
introduction of prepaid membership cards, complemented with
coffee and dessert shops and various daily needs products. These
lifestyle stores will be in service in the coming future, starting with
major cities like Beijing, Shanghai or Hong Kong.

Also, the Group will cooperate with e-commerce platform and use
big data to improve performance of online and offline consumption.
Together with its active franchise strategy, the Group believes
these measures can broaden its customer base and serves as
new growth driver of the Group.

E-commerce business

Capitalizing on the enormous market opportunities arisen from
the fastest-growing e-commerce market, the Group will continue
to invest and expand its e-commerce business, in addition to its
existing advanced logistics and warehousing infrastructure in
Guangzhou for the speed up of product flow. Its O20 platform will
enlarge customer base and expand its market share with relatively
lower cost. The Group expects that the revenue from e-commerce
will see a satisfactory growth in the coming future. Meanwhile,
through the O20 platform, it is able to create synergy effects
between its retail stores and online shops and promote overall
sales.
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Business diversification — OBOR initiative

In order to open up new income source, the Group seized the
opportunities brought by the OBOR initiative. In February 2016,
it entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with the State
Information Center* (Bl % {5 & # 1») and One Belt One Road
(Karamay) Mega Data Technology Company Limited* (—#&—&
(BRI REUE R AR A A]), on the collaboration of setting
up the OBOR product information service platform to collect
consumption related information on various products traded in
the OBOR countries. The Group intends to study the feasibility of
introducing and importing products from the OBOR countries to
the PRC. At the same time, it will also investigate and establish
cross-border payment system to facilitate and support trading and
commercial activities among these countries with the PRC. The
Group adopted a dynamic business model instead of a static one,
and has designed the core strengths it needs to win in its industry,
meanwhile, diversified its business to potential sector with minimal
effort and cost to maximize shareholder’s value.

Conclusion

Fiscal Year 2016 was a year of revolution for the Group. Despite
the challenging market conditions, the Group actively implemented
a series of new measures to cope with the fast changing retail
market and boost its business performance. These actions are
crucial to improving its competitive strengths and facilitating
sustainable improvements in its business operations in the mid-
long term. Meanwhile, the management team is working on
improving its operation efficiency and streamline costs in various
areas to tackle the difficulties ahead.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders,
customers and suppliers for their long-standing support and
recognition. | would also like to express my appreciation to the
management team and the staff for their dedicated contribution
and unwavering commitment to delivering the best services during
the Year. With all of us working together, | look forward to a better
performance for the rest of the year and beyond.

Source:
Figures 1& 2 — National Bureau of Statistics of China

*

For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing and maintaining good
corporate governance practices within the Group to have better
transparency and protection of shareholders’ interest in general.
We believe that a well-balanced corporate governance structure
will definitely enable better management of its business risks and
thereby ensure the Group is operated in the best interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders. The diagram below depicts
the overall corporate governance structure of the Group.

Corporate Governance Structure Diagram
TEREREEE

Shareholders and
other Stakeholders
i 3R B3 E At F 2= AE A £

Company Secretary Board
NEME Exg

=

———————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

Remuneration Committee

HHZES

Nomination Committee

REREE

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report”
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). These functions included:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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TRERBE

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, there are three board committees under the
Board, namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
which have been posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. These committees report directly to the Board
on their works and make recommendations on matter where
appropriate.

Throughout the Year, the Company had applied principles of
and had complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s directions,
strategies and policies, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, overseeing internal controls, formulating the corporate
governance policy and supervising a management team
comprising Executive Directors, general managers and department
heads of the Group. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters and material transactions of the Group.

Currently, the Board comprises a total of ten Directors: five
Executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman),
Mr. KANG Jianming, Mr. WANG Lingxiao, Ms. CAl Jiaying and
Mr. YIN Wansun; one Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN
Mingzhong and four Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INED”), namely Mr. CHEN Jianzhong, Dr. HE Chengying, Mr. HU
Jinxing and Ms. ZHAO Hong. The Board believes that the balance
between Executive Directors, Non-executive Director and INEDs
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Group. The INEDs provide the Group with diversified expertise
and experience. Their views and participation bring independent
judgment and advice on issues relating to the Group’s strategies,
performance, conflicts of interests of all shareholders are taken
into account. The number of INEDs has been no less than
one-third of the number of the Board members and at least one
of whom possesses the appropriate professional accounting
qualification and related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.
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In accordance with the Company’s Article of Association
(“Articles”), the Board shall have the power from time to time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each
AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation and all Directors are subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)
were separate individuals who have no relationship with each
other. Throughout the Year, Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (resigned
on 24 February 2016) and Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (appointed on 24
February 2016) is the Chairman of the Board and is responsible
for providing leadership and ensuring effective running of the
Board in their respective period. Mr. KIU Wai Ming (resigned on
26 April 2016) is the CEO and is responsible for the Group’s day-
to-day operations and implementation of the Group’s strategies
and is assisted by a management team, comprising Executive
Directors, general managers and department heads of the Group,
with authority and responsibility for developing and exercising both
operational and non-operational duties. Following the resignation
of Mr. KIU Wai Ming, there is no executive officer carrying the title
of CEO. The duties of the CEO are undertaken and performed by
the Chairman of the Company. Despite a part of responsibility of
CEO is vested in Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, in which all major decisions are
made in consultation with the other Board members and the senior
management of the Company. The Board believes that there is
sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains
a strong management position of the Company. As such, this was
in deviation from A.2.1 of CG Code.

The Non-executive Director and all INEDs are appointed for
a specific term of one year or three years and are subject to
retirement by rotation. No INED has served the Company for more
than 9 years. Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all INEDs are independent.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the CEO. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws
are followed.
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The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The training records for the Year had
been provided to the Company Secretary by all Directors of the
Company. A summary of trainings received by the Directors for the
Year is shown as below:

ARRBBEREFLEREIXRER  UER
REBRFEEFZNBNNE BRREEESSHF
HABEREEZER - AR EREZERAAA
WERRAFE 2B IRE - AFEEFEFRIIE
A2 BEIIRT -

Type of training

Name of Directors EEHE R
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman) REF LA (EE) B
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung BREEL L A&B
Mr. KIU Wai Ming SHERAE A A&B
Mr. HUNG Tin Chun HRERAE A&B
Mr. KANG Jianming R A B
Mr. WANG Lingxiao FEE LA B
Mr. CHEN Mingzhong BRIS F 58 A4 A&B
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael SEFELEAE A&B
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP SEREE L FH L A&B
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung TR E A&B

Notes:
A:  attending briefing sessions and/or seminars

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been
arranged for the Directors and officers of the Company for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage of directors’ and officers’ liability is reviewed
on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis of at least four times a year to discuss the Group’s business
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results. The Board members are served with notices of
at least 14 days and provided with all agendas and adequate
information for their review at least 3 days prior to the meetings.
After the Board meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. During the
year, four physical Board meetings were held.
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All Directors are adequately briefed on updates on amendments
to or latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws, rules and regulations concerning their obligations as
Directors and good corporate governance practices. They were
also provided with the Group’s monthly management updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects to enable
the Board and each Director to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Chairman), Dr. FAN Yiu
Kwan, JP and Mr. LEE Kwan Hung, all being INEDs, all resigned
on 1 April 2016. Following the resignation of all members of
Audit Committee from 1 April 2016, the Board appointed the new
members to fill the vacancies. As of the date of this report, the
Audit Committee also comprises three members, namely, Ms.
ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Dr. HE Chengying and Mr. HU Jinxing,
all being INEDs. No member of the Audit Committee was a former
partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm. The chairman
of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications in accountancy and experience in financial matters.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Group’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures, to
review the Group’s financial information, to oversee relationship
with the Group’s external auditors and make relevant
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee held
two meetings during the Year and its works performed include
reviewing the adopted accounting principles and practices, the
annual and interim consolidated financial results and reports,
reviewing external auditors’ audit plan, terms of engagement and
recommended auditors’ fees for the Board’s approval, reviewing
the management letters and reports issued by the external
auditors and reviewing the internal audit review reports for
assessing effectiveness of internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources to

discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises four
members, namely, Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (Chairman),
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP, Mr. LEE Kwan Hung and Mr. ZHU Xiaojun
(appointed on 3 February 2016). The majority of the members
of the Nomination Committee are INEDs. Mr. SZE Tsai Ping,
Michael, Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP and Mr. LEE Kwan Hung resigned
as members of Nomination Committee on 1 April 2016. Following
the resignation of members of Nomination Committee, the Board
appointed new members to fill the vacancies. As of the date of
this report, the Nomination Committee comprise three members,
namely, Dr. HE Chengying (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun and
Mr. HU Jinxing. The majority of the members of the Nomination
Committee are INEDs.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies, to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board on selection of individuals
for directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs and
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession plan for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO. The Nomination Committee
was provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and
may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense, where necessary.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in June 2013 which
set out the approach to diversity on the Board. The Board shall
consider various aspects in achieving diversity of Board members,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race and gender. The Nomination Committee will
monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and
review the policy as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year
and its works performed includes reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; approving the appointment of an
Executive Director; and assessing independence of the INEDs.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
BEESETRBER QA 18

REZE®

RAFE  RELZECHNEKEMENK  BESE
BEE4(ERFE) ol FaL - =5
SER KRBT LA (2016 F2 A3HEZT) »
REZBGZARZHNEBABYIERITEEZ - £
BEh4g oL FHLRTHERER
R2016F4 F1ABHIIRBZEGKE - NIEH
ZEeXEBETER EZCCRITHREBNER
FRRFZEER - RARE B REZBERE=R
KB BIEAEEEL(ERE)  KREFLE N
WELE - RBZEGZAZENE BBIIER
TEE -

REZEGZIEHEARTEZTS AL -
BRMARK - WREMARAARRZEEREM
BREEESEHL 22 RIES  VeAHLE
BRZATHAZESZESNKE RBEFBHALH
TEEMEZTSRHES  TXBUFRTES
2B YREBERAREFZAUAREIME
E(LERETFERTRAH) EATEmESeR
HEE - RE LB e ERERRERABEITH
BE VARAREERSKBUEEER  BH
AR A B RIE o

EXZ2N2013F6 ARMESTENEZ TR
R EhHEEREFEE LA EEE
EEDEEFEREZTEREZRRER 21
BARNKE R ETRER B ERK
Rl - REZEEREREEEEEKNE ST
BERZ B - WHREE R R & R BUR -

RAFE  REZEGERITMAGE - HETT
ZIRBRBTESTEZRE - ABLER it
FERERTES  ULFEBIIFATERTZE
ST e



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprises five
members, namely, Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (Chairman), Ms. CHAN
Mei Sheung, Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, Mr. LEE Kwan Hung and
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (appointed on 3 February 2016). The majority of
the members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs. Dr. FAN
Yin Kwan, JP, Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung, Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael
and Mr. LEE Kwan Hung resigned as members of Remuneration
Committee on 1 April 2016. Following the resignation of members
of Remuneration Committee, the Board appointed new members to
fill the vacancies. As of the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprise three members, namely, Mr. CHEN
Jianzhong (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun and Ms. ZHAO Hong.
The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
INEDs.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing remuneration policy, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, to make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of INEDs and to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee was provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year

and discussed the remuneration package for certain Directors and
senior management as well as other remuneration-related matters.
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DIRECTOR’S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS EENSE2HELE

The attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting, TXEWNAEERESNEFTLSE  BHEE
Audit Committee Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting, @ . %E%éig\@@% FMEEeeZ K
Remuneration Committee Meeting and general meeting during the BAEZHEER

Year are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings held
for the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ2016 53R ALEELRE Bz e88A

Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting 2015 AGM
20155
EZ2eE ENZEEe3 RAZELEE FHZEeeR RRPFAE

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun "*®” (Chairman of the Board ~ fEE%£4:" " (%2

and Member of the Remuneration and B WURFEHRES

Nomination Committees) ZREAR) 17 - 17 - -
Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung "% (Member of the &4 +"2 (%8

Remuneration Committee) ZRENR) 4/4 - - 11 11
Mr. KIU Wai Ming " BlARE" 4/4 — - — 10
Mr. HUNG Tin Chun ®#* ARBRET 33 = — — 1
Mr. KANG Jianming " FRALE" 10 — - — —
Mr. WANG Lingxiao "*? TAE LMY 11 — — - -
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. CHEN Mingzhong "¢ [N e o/t
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTEE

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael "**? (Chairman of £ BT 44" (F# %
the Audit and Nomination Committees and EEZRELRE  HR

Member of the Remuneration Committee) FHWZEEHS) 4/4 22 22 1/1 11
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP " (Chairman of SEREE LA P

Remuneration Committee and Member of (HHZEEFE LR

the Audit, and Nomination Committees) BRRIELZEEEMR) 34 212 12 17 17
Mr. LEE Kwan Hung ™" (Member of the SR (2

Audit, Nomination and Remuneration IEERFHNESEHE)

Committees) 2/4 12 12 11 il
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Notes:

1.

10.

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun has appointed as an Executive Director, a member
of each Remuneration and Nomination Committees of the Board with
effect from 3 February 2016 and appointed as the Chairman of the
Board with effect from 24 February 2016.

Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung has resigned as the Chairman of the
Board with effect from 24 February 2016, resigned as a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Board with effect from 1 April 2016
and resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 26 April 2016.

Mr. KIU Wai Ming has resigned as an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer with effect from 26 April 2016.

Mr. HUNG Tin Chun has resigned as an Executive Director with
effect from 24 February 2016.

Mr. KANG Jianming has appointed as an Executive Director with
effect from 3 February 2016.

Mr. WANG Lingxiao has appointed as an Executive Director with
effect from 24 February 2016.

Mr. CHEN Mingzhong has appointed as a Non-executive Director
with effect from 24 February 2016.

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael has resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of each Audit and Nomination
Committees of the Board, and a member of Remuneration Committee
of the Board with effect from 1 April 2016.

Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan has resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of Remuneration Committee of the Board and
a member of each Audit and Nomination Committees of the Board
with effect from 1 April 2016.

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung has resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of each Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees of the Board with effect from 1 April 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries with all Directors, they have confirmed their compliance
with the Model Code throughout the Year. During the Year, the
Company adopted written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of the
dealings in the Company’s securities.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval
and authorization by the shareholders of the Company
in general meetings. The Group’s external auditor is
PricewaterhouseCoopers. The remuneration paid or payable to the
external auditor of the Group during the reporting period comprise
fees for audit services and non-audit services, included providing
professional services on interim review, statement of indebtedness
review.

SMNEE X BUEm

BRZESREERINEREBEM 2RI  EFZ
ERER HAESEZEEZHAERARABR
RIRRAS EEHRRIERRE - REBEINE
ZHEREEBGEG N ER AT - RS MR
ENSENAREINEZBE 2 S B REZR
BRIFFEZ R (RREHDHERN  EHK2H
BHZEERE)ZERM -

Type of Services fRis R 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Audit services B RS 1,500 1,615
Non-audit services IETIZARTS 662 374
Total st 2,162 1,989

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays
a major role in providing objective assurance to the Board that
a sound internal control system is in place and operated by the
management. The head of the internal audit department directly
reports to the Audit Committee on audit matters. The annual audit
works plan covered the business activities and process of the
Group’s core operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will
be performed on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit
Committee and the management from time to time.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s internal
control system, while the management ensures the sufficient and
effective operational controls over the key business process are
properly implemented with regular review and update.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. To maintain a
sound system of internal control and safeguard our shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets at all times, the Group has an
independent audit team to review and monitor all critical aspects
of the Group’s activities and its internal control. During the
Year, the Board had reviewed the findings of the internal control
review performed by the internal auditors and external auditors
together with the Audit Committee and, after discussion with the
management and external auditors, was satisfied that the Group’s
internal control system was sound and adequate for the Year. The
Board would continue to review and improve the Group’s internal
control system, taking into account the prevailing regulatory
requirements, business development needs and the interests of
shareholders.
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The Board also reviews annually the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the channels by which information is communicated
with its shareholders. The Company’s corporate communications
include among other things, announcements, financial reports,
circulars and other corporate communications which are
disseminated through its website at www.walkershop.com.hk
and the website of the Stock Exchange in compliance with the
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Company’s shareholders. All Directors will make
an effort to attend general meetings. The chairman of the
AGM proposes separate resolution for each issue and invites
presence of chairman of each of the Board Committees for
answering questions at the AGM. External auditor also attends
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of audit, the
preparation and content of auditors’ report and the confirmation
of auditor’'s independence. The notice of AGM and related papers
are distributed to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM. At the AGM, the Chairman ensures that detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are explained.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, aged 45, is the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Board. Mr. Zhu is the bother-in-law of Ms. CAIl Jiaying, who is
an executive Director of the Group. Mr. Zhu is responsible for
the overall management and strategies planning for the business
development of the Group. He is currently the general manager of
Shanghai Sunrise Pension Service Co. Ltd in the PRC. He is also
a sole director of China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited,
a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhu is experienced
in the industry of electronic commerce. He joined the Group on 3
February 2016.

Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung, aged 49, is a consultant of the Group
effective from 26 April 2016. Ms. Chan resigned as the Chairman,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and an executive
Director of the Group effective from 24 February 2016, 1 April
2016 and 26 April 2016 respectively. She also resigned as a
director of most of the subsidiaries of the Company with effect
from 25 May 2016. Ms. Chan is responsible for the management
of footwear retail business of the Group. She has over 20 years of
experience in the footwear retail industry.

Mr. KIU Wai Ming, aged 67, is a consultant of the Group effective
from 26 April 2016. Mr. Kiu resigned as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Group effective from 26 April
2016. He also resigned as a director of all of the subsidiaries
of the Company effective from 26 April 2016. He holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Economics and Marketing from Louisiana
State University, the United States of America. Mr. Kiu currently
serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of Man Sang
International Limited as well as Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings
Limited, (both listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited). Mr. Kiu is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, an investment
bank wholly-owned by China Construction Bank Corporation. Mr.
Kiu has over 30 years of experience in the finance and banking
industry.
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Mr. KANG Jianming, aged 41, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Kang obtained a Master’'s Degree in Philosophy from
the Beijing Normal University. He also completed an Executive
MBA programme from Zhongshan University in the PRC and
the China UnionPay Senior Management Programme from
the Business and Administration Department of the Tsinghua
University in the PRC. Mr. Kang obtained the intermediate level
qualification in Finance and Economics conferred by the Ministry
of Personnel of the Government of the PRC (currently known
as the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
Government of the PRC). He has extensive experience in the
industry of finance and economics. Mr. Kang joined the Group on
3 February 2016.

Mr. WANG Lingxiao, aged 46, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Wang graduated from the Renmin University of China
with a Bachelor's Degree in File Protection Technology. He
also obtained a Master's Degree in Finance from the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Wang has extensive
experience in the financial and securities fields. Mr. Wang joined
the Group on 24 February 2016.

Ms. CAI Jiaying, aged 35, is an executive Director of the Group
effective from 1 April 2016. Ms. Cai is the sister-in-law of Mr.
ZHU Xiaojun, who is the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Group. Ms. Cai graduated from the Shanghai Art & Design
Academy with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Fashion Design. Ms. Cai
has extensive experience in the fashion design industry and she
also has years of experience in ladies’s fashion design, brand
development as well as the management and business operation.
Ms. Cai is also the general manager of Shanghai Anxin Insurance
Agency Limited.

Mr. YIN Wansun, aged 55, is an executive Director of the Group
with effect from 19 May 2016. Mr. Yin obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in Engineering from the Dalian University of Technology
(formerly known as KiE#E T ZB3) in the PRC. He is currently the
managing director of Shanghai Fudi Industry Company Limited and
is responsible for monitoring the overall business operations. Mr.
Yin has over 20 years of experience in the corporate management
field.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHEN Mingzhong, aged 47, is a Non-executive Director
of the Group. Mr. Chen holds a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration (International) from the University of Hong Kong.
He also completed an advanced graduate studies in finance at
the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Mr.
Chen is currently an executive director of Shanghai Yintong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chen is an associate of the Institute
of Financial Accountants in the United Kingdom and a registered
financial planner of the Society of Registered Financial Planners in
Hong Kong. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in the finance and
banking industry. He joined the Group on 24 February 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael, aged 71, joined the Group in May
2007 and resigned on 1 April 2016. Immediately before his
resignation, he was an Independent Non-executive Director and
the Chairman of both the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Group. Mr. Sze holds a Master's Degree in Laws (LLM)
from the University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Sze has over 30 years of experience in the financial
and securities field. Mr. Sze currently serves as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Greentown China Holdings Limited
and Harbour Centre Development Limited (both listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). From
2000 to 2011, Mr. Sze was formerly a Non-executive Director
of Burwill Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He served as a former
member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal. He was
also a former council member and a member of the Main Board
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Sze was previously a director of Baron Global Financial
Services Limited and Ping An Securities Limited. He resigned
as an Independent Non-executive Director of GOME Electrical
Appliances Holding Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) on 24 June 2015.
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Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP, aged 71, joined the Group in May 2007
and resigned on 1 April 2016. Immediately before his resignation,
he was an Independent Non-executive Director and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee as well as a member of both the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Group. Dr.
Fan holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics from the University
of Hong Kong, a Master’s Degree in Economics from the University
of Toronto, Canada and a Doctor’'s Degree in Philosophy
(Economics) from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, the United
States of America. Dr. Fan is currently a council member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Dr. Fan retired as an Executive
Director of Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications in July 2013.

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung, aged 50, joined the Group in February 2011
and resigned on 1 April 2016. Immediately before his resignation,
he was an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee as well as the
Nomination Committee of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the
University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and the United
Kingdom in 1997. Between 1993 and 1994, Mr. Lee was a Senior
Manager of the Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He is currently a consultant of a law firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee serves as an Independent Non-executive Director
of Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited, China BlueChemical
Ltd., Embry Holdings Limited, Futong Technology Development
Holdings Limited, Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., NetDragon
Websoft Inc., Newton Resources Ltd., Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Company Limited, Red Star Macalline Group Corporation Ltd., FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited, Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited
and China Goldjoy Group Limited (all listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Mr. Lee was formerly
an Independent Non-executive Director of Far East Holdings
International Limited and Yuexiu REIT Asset Management Limited
(both listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited).

Mr. CHEN Jianzhong, aged 60, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group effective from 1 April 2016. Mr. Chen holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Wireless Electronics from the South China
Normal University in the PRC. Mr. Chen obtained the professional
qualification of senior engineer conferred by Review Committee
for Engineering Professional Qualification of BOC in August
1993. Prior to his appointment as an Independent Non-executive
Director, Mr. Chen was the operation director of BOC Services
Company Limited, where he was principally responsible for,
among others, supervising the customer service centre and the
department of information system management of the company.
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Dr. HE Chengying, aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group effective from 1 April 2016. Dr. He holds a
Doctor’'s Degree in Economics from the Xiamen University in the
PRC. Dr. He has currently worked in Guosen Securities Company
Limited for over 14 years since March 2002. Since January 2014,
Dr. He has also worked as an adjunct professor in the Xiamen
University. He has decades of experience in the economics and
securities fields.

Mr. HU Jinxing, aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group effective from 1 April 2016. Mr. Hu graduated
from the Department of Chinese Language and Literature of
the Shanghai Normal University in the PRC. He is currently the
president of the More Love Foundation.

Ms. ZHAO Hong, aged 46, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group effective from 1 April 2016. Ms. Zhao
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting from the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and a Master's Degree
of Business Administration from the China Europe International
Business School in the PRC. Ms. Zhao obtained the qualification
of Accountant specializing in Accounting (Corporate) conferred by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in May 1996. She is currently a
non-practicing member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is currently a finance director of EBT Digital
Communication Retail Group. Ms. Zhao has extensive experience
in the financial and accounting fields.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are retailing of footwear in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

An analysis to the Group’s performance for the Year by segment
is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of the Company’s
and the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2016 are set out on pages
43 to 118 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended not to declare final dividend for the
Year (2015: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2015:
Nil).

DONATIONS
During the Year, the Group did not make charitable contributions
and other donations (2015: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the
Year.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
and share options during the Year are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

GROUP’S BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2016 are set out
in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman) (appointed as an Executive Director
on 3 February 2016 and appointed as the Chairman of the Board
on 24 February 2016)

Mr. KANG Jianming (appointed on 3 February 2016)

Mr. WANG Lingxiao (appointed on 24 February 2016)

Ms. CAl Jiaying (appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. YIN Wansun (appointed on 19 May 2016)

Ms. CHAN Mei Sheung (resigned as the Chairman of the Board on
24 February 2016 and resigned as an Executive Director on 26
April 2016)

Mr. KIU Wai Ming (resigned as an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer on 26 April 2016)

Mr. HUNG Tin Chun (resigned on 24 February 2016)

Non-executive Director

Mr. CHEN Mingzhong (appointed on 24 February 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Jianzhong (appointed on 1 April 2016)

Dr. HE Chengying (appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. HU Jinxing (appointed on 1 April 2016)

Ms. ZHAO Hong (appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP(resigned on 1 April 2016)

Mr. LEE Kwan Hung (resigned on 1 April 2016)

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and
shall than be eligible for re-election.
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According to the above provision, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Mr. KANG
Jianming, Mr. WANG Lingxiao, Ms. CAl Jiaying, Mr. YIN Wansun,
Mr. CHEN Jianzhong, Dr. HE Chengying, Mr. HU Jinxing and Ms.
ZHAO Hong shall hold office until the AGM, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. CHEN
Mingzhong (“Mr. Chen”) appointed as a Non-executive Director
on 24 February 2016. Mr. Chen has informed the Company that
he will not offer himself for re-relection and accordingly will retire
from the office at the AGM. Mr. Chen has confirmed that he has
no claims of compensation against the Company whether by way
of compensation, remuneration, severance payments, expenses,
damages or otherwise and he has no disagreement with the Board
and there are no matters relating to his retirement that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company or the
Stock Exchange.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, Ms. CHAN Mei
Sheung (“Ms. Chan”) resigned as the Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director of the Group with effect from 24 February
2016 and 26 April 2016 respectively. Ms Chan also resigned as
a director of most of the subsidiaries of the Company effective
from 25 May 2016. Mr. KIU Wai Ming (“Mr. Kiu”) resigned as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Group
effective from 26 April 2016. Mr. Kiu also resigned as a director
of all of the subsidiaries of the Company effective from 26 April
2016. Mr. HUNG Tin Chun (“Mr. Hung”) resigned as an executive
Director effective from 24 February 2016. Mr. SZE Tsai Ping,
Michael (“Mr. Sze”) resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director effective from 1 April 2016. Dr. FAN Yiu Kwan, JP (“Dr.
Fan”) resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director effective
from 1 April 2016. Mr. LEE Kwan Hung (“Mr. Lee”) resigned as an
Independent Non-executive Director effective from 1 April 2016.
Ms. Chan, Mr. Kiu, Mr. Hung, Mr. Sze, Dr. Fan and Mr. Lee have
confirmed that she/he has no disagreements with the Board and
that there are no other matters in relation to their resignation that
needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company or the Stock Exchange.

Changes of Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of Directors required to be disclosed are set out below:

During the Year, Mr. LEE Kwan Hung, an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, (resigned on 1 April 2016),
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited, Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited
and China Goldjoy Group Limited, all listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 18 November 2015,
23 November 2015 and 27 November 2015 respectively.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Biographical Details of Directors

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on
pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or Any Specified Undertaking of the Company or
Any Other Associated Corporation

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares (“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, were as
follows:
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Notes:

1.

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”) has beneficial interest in 480,737,002
Shares in the Company held by China Consume Elderly Care
Holdings Limited (“CCEC”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company, wholly owned by Mr. Zhu. Smart Presto Holdings Limited
(“Smart Presto”), a former controlling shareholder of the Company,
resolved on 5 June 2015 be wound up and will make distributions in
specie (“Distribution”) to the shareholders of Smart Presto. After the
Distribution, the total of 381,657,500 Shares owned by Ms. CHAN
Mei Sheung (“Ms. Chan”) and her two daughters (“Daughters”),
details of which are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 5 October 2015. CCEC entered into the Sales and Purchase
Agreement (“SP Agreement”) with Ms. Chan and her Daughters on 7
January 2016 in relation to sell 381,657,500 Shares (“Sale Shares”)
and sell 6,000,000 underlying Shares by Ms. Chan exercised her
share options in full (“Option Shares”). After the completion of the
SP Agreement on 14 January 2016, none of Shares were held by
Ms. Chan and CCEC is required to make unconditional mandatory
cash offers (“Offer”) for all the issued Shares. Following the close
of the Offer on 24 February 2016, CCEC received valid acceptances
of the Offer in respect of a total of 93,079,502 Shares (“Acceptance
Shares”). As such, taking into account the Sales Shares, being
381,657,500 Shares, Ms. Chan’s Option Shares, being 6,000,000
Shares, and the Acceptance Shares, being 93,079,502 Shares
transferred, CCEC are interested in an aggregate of 480,737,002
Shares, representing approximately 74.96% of entire issued share
capital of the Company. Ms. Chan resigned as an executive Director
on 26 April 2016.

Mr. KIU Wai Ming (“Mr. Kiu”) resigned as an executive Director, the
chief executive officer of the Group and resigned as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company, and will no longer be a director
of any member of the Group with effect from 26 April 2016. Following
the resignation of Mr. Kiu, he is no longer a core connected person
of the Company.

The Share Purchase Option Scheme adopted by Smart Presto on
5 August 2009, option was granted to Mr. Kiu to purchase up to
6,000,000 Shares from Smart Presto (“Options”) and such Options
in full will lapse following the Distribution.

Mr. HUNG Tin Chun (“Mr. Hung”) resigned as an executive Director
on 24 February 2016. Mr. Hung is the brother-in-law of Ms. Chan.
Mr. Hung exercised the options in full on 13 January 2016, being a
total of 2,000,000 Shares under the share option scheme granted
on 5 August 2009. After the completion of the Offer on 24 February
2016, none of Shares were held by Mr. Hung and his spouse, who
accepted the Offer in respect of all 212,000 Shares held before the
close of the Offer.
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which the Directors and chief executive were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Non-Competition Undertaking

Pursuant to a deed of non-competition entered into between
late Mr. HUANG Wen Yi (“Mr. Huang”) and Ms. Chan, and the
Company dated 23 May 2007 (“Non-Competition Undertaking”),
each of the late Mr. Huang and Ms. Chan has undertaken to the
Company (for itself and on behalf of each of its subsidiaries) that
so long as the Company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and so long as any of late Mr. Huang and Ms. Chan
remains as a controlling shareholder, he or she will not, and
shall procure that his or her associates will not, compete with the
Group, directly or indirectly, whether on his or her own or jointly
with or on behalf of any person, firm, or company, by carrying on
or being engaged, concerned or interested, directly or indirectly,
whether as a shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or
otherwise, in the carrying on of any activity or business which
directly or indirectly competes or is likely to be in competition with
the footwear business including without limitation the design and
sales of footwear products operated by the Group or will from
time to time be engaged or operated by the Group in the PRC and
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Japan.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed Ms. Chan’s compliance with the Non-Competition
Undertaking. The Independent Non-executive Directors are of the
view that none of the controlling shareholders or Directors held
any interests in any business that, either directly or indirectly,
competes or is likely to compete with the Group’s business.

The Company has also received a confirmation from Ms. Chan,
which stated that Ms. Chan, as the controlling shareholder of the
Company, has complied with the Non-Competition Undertaking for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

After the completion of the SP Agreement entered into between
Ms. Chan and CCEC on 14 January 2016 in relation to the
Sale Shares transaction, Ms. Chan is no longer a controlling
shareholder of the Company. As such, the Non-Competition
Undertaking is lapsed.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she does not have any interest in any business
apart from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

LONG TERM INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 21 May
2007 (“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives to eligible participants to contribute to the Company
and enabling the Company to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further
options granted under the Share Option Scheme (“Post-IPO Share
Options”) will be issued but any such options then outstanding will
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Post-IPO Share Options and any other share option
scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being
600,000,000 Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Post-IPO Share Options and any other share
options granted and to be granted to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant of
the Post-IPO Share Option (“Grant Date”) shall not exceed 1% of
the number of Shares in issue as at the Grant Date unless prior
approval of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting is
obtained.

The Post-IPO Share Options may be exercised during a period
as notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the
Grant Date and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year period.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified in the
letter of grant, there is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price of the Post-IPO Share Option shall be
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of: (a)
the nominal value of the Shares; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the Grant Date; and (c) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the Grant Date.
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Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 24,900,000 Shares were #2009F 8 A5 HIRE 2 ERENIRITEEER
granted on 5 August 2009 at an exercise price of HK$0.60 per 0.60/8 JL R & ££24,900,000 f% f% 15 72009
Share. The closing price of the Shares on 5 August 2009 was F8HS5H  RHZWMEAR058ETT °
HK$0.58.

The Post-IPO Share Options granted on 5 August 2009 shall vest R2009F 8 A5 BE I 2 B8R AFE R IERE
in the grantees in accordance with the timetable below: ARBATREREE TARA

Exercisable period Percentage of Post-IPO Share Options to vest
1TEH BTEBZER A AREREERE2ADL

5 August 2010 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
20108 A5H—201748 A4H NERBERBRERIZ 20%

5 August 2011 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
20118 A5H—201748A4H NERBERBRERIZ 20%

5 August 2012 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
20128 A5H—201748 A4H TNERBERBRERIZ 20%

5 August 2013 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
201348 A5H—201748 A4H NERBERBRERIZ 20%

5 August 2014 — 4 August 2017 Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
201458 A5H—201748A4H NERBERBRERIZ 20%

Details of movements of the Post-IPO Share Options during the RAFE  BRAREREBRE ZZHFHEN
Year are as follows: N

No. of Post-IPO Share Options

BRAHEREZEREHE
Balance
Balance as at
as at 31 March
1 April 2015 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2016
2015 % during during during during RH2016 F
Name or category of RRAZ 4818 the Year the Year the Year the Year 3A31H
grantee HARER 2% REFERE RAFETE REAFERHSE REEEXX iR
Directors =z
CHAN Mei Sheung BReg 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 — — —
HUNG Tin Chun HKRE 2,000,000 — 2,000,000 — — —
Employees E&
In aggregate A 11,020,000 = 9,800,000 = 1,220,000 =
Total @st 19,020,000 — 17,800,000 — 1,220,000 —
None of the Post-IPO Share Options was cancelled, a total of RAFE  BiEE X AREREBREWTHE -
17,800,000 Post-IPO Share Options have been exercised and im& $£17,800,000 1) & X ARERZERED &
a total of 1,220,000 Post-IPO Share Options have been lapsed 1TE - A $£1,220,0001) &R AFRE K ZERK
during the Year. BRI -

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Share Purchase Option Scheme

Smart Presto has adopted a Share Purchase Option Scheme on 5
August 2009 (“Share Purchase Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of advancing the interest of the Group by rewarding persons who
have made or will make valuable contribution to the business of
the Group or is/are regarded as valuable human resources of the
Group. Subject to the provisions under the Share Purchase Option
Scheme, the maximum number of Shares available for purchase
on the exercise of options granted under the Share Purchase
Option Scheme (“Share Purchase Options”) shall be 30,000,000
Shares. Any Shares that are subject to a Share Purchase Option
(or any portion thereof) that lapses, expires or for any reason is
terminated unexercised shall become available for purchase under
the Share Purchase Option Scheme.

Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 Shares were
granted on 5 August 2009 at an exercise price of HK$0.60 per
Share.

The Share Purchase Options granted on 5 August 2009 shall vest
in the grantees in accordance with the timetable below:

Exercisable period

TES

IRt E S8

R 2009F 8 A5 HIRMBR M B ERETZ(TR
HBEESTE]))  BRNAZAREAEERERKAE
S EEEEE 2 ALRHAEBEEBEZAD
BREHER  WRAAREE 2 FE - EIRDE
BREFTEEXZHEBRT - AITERIBERMDIES#
EREHE(ROBEREDMAIEREE 2 &
SR% B 430,000,000 % o ¥ K kit~ BIEE
EEARALLEMEARTEZROBEEGE
EAE D) 2 E MG - ABIRIERDIE S T2
AHEEE o

MR2009F 8 ASAEK K A IZITHFESR
0.60/8 0284 £ 10,000,000 A% 17 -

R2009F 8 A5 AEE 2R M EBEEEREIAT
FEREB TEREA

Percentage of Share Purchase Options to vest
BTFEEB2ROBER2BDL

5 August 2010 — 4 August 2017
20108 A5H—201748 A4 H
5 August 2011 — 4 August 2017
20118 A5H—201748 A4 H
5 August 2012 — 4 August 2017
20128 A5H—201748 A4 H
5 August 2013 — 4 August 2017
201348 A5H—201748 A4 H
5 August 2014 — 4 August 2017
20148 A5H—201748 A4 H

Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
NERBER PR 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
TNHRBER PR 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
NERBER PR 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
NHRBER PR 20%
Up to 20% of the total number of options granted
TNHRBERPEREZ 20%
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Details of movements of the Share Purchase Options during the
Year are as follows:

RAEE  RPBEEZEHFHEOT

No. of Share Purchase Options

ROBEEZE

Balance

Balance as at

_as at 31 March

1 April 2015 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2016

®2015% during during during during R2016

Name or category of RRAZ 4R18 the Year the Year the Year the Year 3A31H

grantee H A ER 2% REEERE REAFET REFEDZHE REAEEXN 2
Director 2

KIU Wai Ming SHH 6,000,000 = = = 6,000,000 =

Total @t 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 -

None of the Share Purchase Options was exercised and cancelled
and a total of 6,000,000 Share Purchase Options have been
lapsed during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company), had the following interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of substantial

RAFE  SERDEEECETE RN
i1 & #£6,000,000 {7 i (7 B8 B HEE RN -

TERRAROREBERG 2R RAR

MR2016 F3A31H  MEZMAM  HIRIEF
HEREEIEDIEXVEFE2 R EINEAERARR T
HEE o R IBEEBES KRG G FE XV E6E 336 1§
FEzETMARE UTATQIERAATE
EHEETHAB)RERRRYD RABRK

R FORBRIT
Approximate
% of the
Number and Company’s
nature of total issued
interests held share capital

shareholder Capacity FrisrEs HERARE BT
FTERRER =37 BEARME RIBLEZHO%
China Consume Elderly Beneficial owner 480,737,002 74.96%
Care Holdings Limited Ez5#HAB A
(Note)
HEDEEBZIERER
NIl rzd,
Mr. HUI Wan Hon Interests held jointly with Ng Chee Yin Susie Linda 56,271,400 8.77%
FTEESE 22 Ng Chee Yin Susie Linda 2t [F#FH 2 %

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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Note:

China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, the registered owner of
480,737,002 Shares, was owned as to 100% (1 share) by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun
in the capacity of beneficial owners respectively.

All the interests disclosed above represents long positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2016, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, all suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
10% of the Group’s total purchases and the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 39.1% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Our Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the total turnover for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers
or suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company had no transactions which constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 23 of this annual
report.
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REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of
this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of the
Report of Directors, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefits of any of the directors of
the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or an
associated company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the
environmental and social sustainable development of the regions
where it operates. The Group takes into account of environmental
protection issues in developing and designing the new products.
It uses materials which have passed relevant physical and safety
tests and complied with the environmental laws and regulations.
The Group concerns about the responsibilities of its suppliers on
environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan (“Regions”)
as well as the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in such Regions. During the year ended 31 March
2016, the Group did not breach any law and regulation that has a
significant impact on the Company.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Xiaojun
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR RE

i

pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WALKER GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Walker
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 43 to 118, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR RE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Consolidated Income

mE R

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Statement

BZE2016 F3 531 HIEFE
2016 2015
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bzt FET FAET
Revenue U %5 5 840,658 1,090,668
Cost of sales SHE KA 6 (357,342) (473,751)
Gross profit EF 483,316 616,917
Selling and distribution costs HE R 5 HAR 6 (545,336) (630,998)
Administrative expenses THER 6 (97,577) (88,838)
Other gains, net HEfrzs o F5E 7 9,454 10,388
Other income HAb U A 8 4,277 7,035
Operatingloss #®&®&® (145,866) | (85,496) _
Finance income B 10 224 212
Finance costs 58 A 10 (748) (701)
Finance costs, net MER - FE (524) (489)
Loss before income tax RET RSB AT E 8 (146,390) (85,985)
Income tax expense Frig®if = 11 (656) (2,415)
Loss for the year TEEER (147,046) (88,400)
Attributable to: T5IEE B
Equity holders of the Company RAGIERTEB A (146,044) (87,420)
Non-controlling interests SEIE R (1,002) (980)
(147,046) (88,400)
Loss per share for loss attributable RAGIERBEEARBGEBEZ
to equity holders of the Company B ER (AEREIIERT)
(expressed in HK cents per share)
— Basic — &K 12 (23.18) (14.02)
— Diluted — e 12 (23.18) (14.02)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 st B A AR & M TS ek < 4R ER D ©

financial statements.

43

Annual Report 2015/2016

2015/2016 FF 3R




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE2016 F3 A 31 HILFE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Lossfortheyear .- ATERSR (147,046) | (88,400) _
Other comprehensive income HAth 2
Items that have been reclassified or maybe B EHFHHDBESXHEZAEHFHES
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: Bz oIER -
Currency translation differences BB E ERE (11,503) (1,921)
Total items that have been reclassified or EEHHENERAENSEE
may be subsequently reclassified to Bm o IBE B5E
profit or loss (11,503) (1,921)
Total comprehensive income for the year AREErEKZLEE (158,549) (90,321)
Attributable to: B TNAIIE A S
Equity holders of the Company RAAIERFER A (157,471) (89,185)
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR R 2 (1,078) (1,136)
(158,549) (90,321)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEbd < I EE R dR & T sk < A BB D -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R ER
As at 31 March 2016
2016 £3 531 H

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
orEa FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 14 29,252 34,942
Intangible assets EEE 16 1,873 2,570
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTISIHEE 17 — 6,091
Long-term deposits EHZe 20 12,588 10,995
o 47 54598
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 18 223,446 242,388
Trade receivables FENE 5 /I8 19 72,939 115,024
Deposits, prepayments and other BE - BIIRIEREM
receivables FEW IR 20 27,081 40,044
Cash and cash equivalents HeMEeEEIEHR 21 41,039 94,939
364,505 492,395
Assets held for sale FEELERE 22 2,110 5,022
366,615 497,417
Total assets EEHAE 410,328 552,015
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to &2 FERIEHEAEERA
equity holders of the Company Rf#E
Share capital [N 23 64,136 62,356
Share premium 10w E 23 576,561 562,600
Reserves [t 24 (419,998) (257,466)
220,699 367,490
Non-controlling interests PR S (2,014) (2,316)
Total equity fEREEE 218,685 365,174
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R ER
As at 31 March 2016
2016 £3 531 H

2016 2015
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Wit FET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Obligation under finance lease BE M EANE 25 9 115
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFEHBE 17 351 5,990
e ‘O 6,105 _
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BB 5008 26 104,026 101,396
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E AL FE S IR 26 41,129 53,193
Borrowings B 27 44,920 25,040
Obligation under finance lease A EASE 25 106 106
Tax payable FERHLIR 1,102 1,001
191,283 180,736
Total liabilities BEAHE 191,643 186,841
Total equity and liabilities EEhaEAE 410,328 552,015
The consolidated financial statement on pages 43 to 118 were FABEMBEH A ME MR ESEN2016
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2016 and were F6HI0AHE - WHTIEFREKES :
signed on its behalf
Zhu Xiaojun Kang Jianming
KREE FEH
Director Director
EZE EZE
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 it B A AR & M TS sk < 4R ER D ©

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016

ELE2016F3 531 HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARAEREEAER
Share Non-
capital and Other  Accumulated controlling Total
premium reserves losses Sub-total interests equity
BAR K5
w8 AR 6 Mt FERER it
(Note 23)
(Hzt23)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT TAT FAT FET FET
Balance at 1 April 2014 R2014F4 A1 BZER 624,956 132,544 (300,939) 456,561 (1,180) 455,381
Comprehensive income 2EYE
Loss for the year TEEER — - (87,420) (87,420) (980) (88,400
Other comprehensive income Hit2EkE
Currency translation differences EHpEES - (1,765) — (1,765) (156) (1,921)
Total comprehensive income 2AUHAS - (1765 (87.420)  (89,185) (1,136)  (90,321)
Transactions with owners: BEARS
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme — BERAREREEREE
value of employee services (Note 23)  — ([EERMBE(H#23) — 86 — 86 - 86
Share Purchase Option Scheme — R EEREE
value of employee services (Note 23)  — ([EEREBE(H#23) - 28 - 28 - 28
Total transactions with owners BEANR58E — 114 — 114 - 114
Balance at 31 March 2015 =~~~ 1 ROISEIANAZESR 62495 130893 (388359) 367490 (2316) 365174
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Loss for the year AEEBE - —  (146044)  (146,044) (1,002) (147,046
Other comprehensive income Eth2E K
Currency translation differences ERBEER - (11,427) - (11,427) (76) (11,503)
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - (11,427) (146,044) (157,471) (1,078) (158,549)
Transactions with owners: BEARS:
Exercise of share options (Note 23) IR H23) 15,741 (29,511) 24,450 10,680 - 10,680
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ 3EZMRHERTE
interests — - - - 1,380 1,380
Total transactions with owners BEANRSEE 15,741 (29,511) 24,450 10,680 1,380 12,060
Balance at 31 March 2016 R2016 53 B 31 B2tk 640,697 89,955 (509,953) 220,699 (2,014) 218,685
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 it B A AR & M TS sk < 4R ER D ©

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ==
b =1 Eﬁ.ﬁlﬁié‘%
For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ2016 F3 H31 HILFE

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bzt FET FAET
Cash flows from operating REEBRCZRERE
activities
Cash used in operations KEFTA RS 28(a) (80,935) (21,869)
Interest paid EFE (748) (701)
Income tax refund REIFTISH 3 1,578
Income tax paid BERPTER (200) (2,639)
Net cash used in operating activities & XA 2 F5E (81,880) (23,631)
Cash flows from investing RETHZHERE
activities
Purchases of property, plant and BAME - BEMEE
equipment (11,877) (17,306)
Purchases of intangible assets BAELEE (556) (332)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BELRREZ
plant and equipment FriS k18 28(b) 62 7,462
Proceeds from disposal of investment HE&REYE G HIE
properties 28(c) — 3,770
Proceeds from disposal of assets held H&E#FEGIEHEEEZ
for sale PG RIE 28(d) 12,760 —
Interest received 2 E 224 212
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEREE(FTAR)Z
investing activities REFER 613 (6,194)
Cash flows from financing MELTB2HERE
activities
Proceeds from borrowings B82S 3IE 64,896 80,736
Repayment of borrowings BEEER (44,896) (60,736)
Proceeds from issuance of new BT Z FT1S508
shares 10,680 —
Capital injection from non-controlling  FF#E ST &
interests 1,380 —
Capital elements of finance lease BEMENRCERBH
payments (106) (106)
Net cash generated from financing BEGHAE RS IFRE
activities 31,954 19,894
Net decrease in cash and cash ReERBRELEERARED
equivalents FE (49,313) (9,931)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUzHeMR2EEER
beginning of the year 94,939 107,044
Exchange differences IE X ZRE (4,587) (2,174)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZBESRESEEER
end of the year 21 41,039 94,939

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

GENERAL INFORMATION

—REH

Walker Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the retailing of footwear in Hong Kong, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on
10 November 2006 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
EFREHBORBE

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note
4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
reported a net loss of HK$147,046,000 (2015:
HK$88,400,000) and had a net cash outflow from
operating activities of HK$81,880,000 (2015:
HK$23,631,000).

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group
has sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections prepared by management covering a
period of twelve months from 31 March 2016. In order
to improve the Group’s financial position and alleviate
the liquidity pressure, the directors of the Company
have been implementing various measures.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had unutilised banking
facilities of approximately HK$58,178,000. The Group
has communicated continuously with the principal banks
on the Group’s performance to ensure the existing
banking facilities, which are fully secured by the Group’s
properties and assets held for sale, to be continuously
available to the Group. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that such banking facilities will be
renewed upon expiry in November 2016 and continue
to be available to the Group for the next twelve months
from 31 March 2016.

On 29 April 2016, the Group has entered into the
Memorandum of Understanding with A.C. Pavia
pursuant to which A.C. Pavia has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for up to 64,140,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at HK$1.233 per share. The Company is
negotiating with A.C. Pavia for the signing of a formal
subscription agreement at a date no later than 31 July
2016 or such a later date mutually agreed by both
parties (Note 34).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

On 24 June 2016, the Group entered into the
subscription agreement to issue a four years convertible
bond with aggregate principal amount of HK$30,000,000
to Quam Securities Company Limited. All the completion
conditions of such issuance of convertible bond have
been fulfilled as of the date of the approval of the
financial statements. The proceeds from the issuance of
the convertible bond are expected to be received in July
2016 (Note 34).

The Group is implementing measures, such as
optimizing its overall sales network by relocating certain
of its outlets and offices and expanding its e-commerce
business, to improve its profit margin and operating
cashflows. In addition, the Group also plans to dispose
of certain non-sales generating assets to improve its
cashflows.

Based on the cash flow projections and taking into
account the Group’s operating performance, the
continuous availability of banking facilities, and the
additional financing to be obtained, the directors are of
the opinion that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months from 31 March
2016. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Amended standards have been issued and effective
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2015

HKAS19 (Amendment)  Defined benefit plans:
employee contributions

Annual improvements Annual improvements

project 2010-2012 cycle
Annual improvements Annual improvements
project 2011-2013 cycle

There are no amended standards that are effective for
the first time for the financial period beginning on 1 April
2015 that would have a material impact on the Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FESTHTBEMEE)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 Bt BRRREZE (F)
(Continued)
New and amended standards have been issued but %2015#54/5’1 AE#HZHBEEE
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1 B R LR - BWAEEEPRR
April 2015 and have not been early adopted ZHETRASISET R
Effective for
accounting period
beginning on
or after
RULT BEE
ZEHBRZ
EREEES:
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BEGERZE 1 RUSETA) WERETE 201641 A1H
HKAS 16 and 38 (Amendments) Clarification of acceptable methods of 1 January 2016

depreciation and amortization
BB GTERIE 16 R 38IR(IEFTA) BIBITE REHAIEX A

HKAS 16 and 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: bearer plants

EAGTERIFE 16 K41 F(EFTAN) B¥ - AEUED

HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statement

EREGERIE 27 5 (1BFT ) B ERR 2 A

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

BRMBERE LR E 9 TEIA

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an
(Amendments) investor and its associate or joint venture

BEMBRELNE10LEEGTEL REFEHBEQRHIALERRZHEZ
5285k (17T A) BEHEIIE

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities: applying the consolidation
HKAS 28 (Amendments) exception

BRMBHEERE105 - BEYE REBR: HNeattzER
WELF 1257 R BB GFTER
285K (EFTA)

20161 H1H
1 January 2016
201641 A 1H
1 January 2016
201641 A1H
1 January 2018
2018F 1 H1H
To be determined

BEEE
1 January 2016

20161 A81H

HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint 1 January 2016
operation

FEMBRELNE 11 FRUEFTA) WEHRIKRE R Z G@:DA 20161 H1H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
FEMIBERE LR E 1457 EBIRLERP 20161 A1H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BEMBHRELERFE 155 SR OLON 20181 H1H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BEMEHMEERFE 1657 HeE 201941 A1 H
Annual improvements projects Annual improvements 2012 — 2014 cycle 1 January 2016
FEUEER 20126 — 2014 F Az FE it 20161 A1 H
The Group has already commenced an assessment AEBECEFAFTEZETT REES
of the impact of these new and amended standards BRI 2B M RERTNZEIA]
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new BEEMBRELENSETHAERE 2K
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results ERERMBIRAERERTE -

of operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FESTBREBRESE)
2.2 Subsidiaries

(a) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(i)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

53

2.2 MEBALAFE
(a) KREEG

B AREAEEYEEHES
RBLER(RRERIEER) -2
AEBR2EZBERM AL E
Bl ¥R < [z 2k = A ] 2 @ 4 ﬂ‘ﬁ
BRENVEBEHZER 2
EFOIRE - AEBRIRRS
IR ERE o ME QRN ESE
BREEASEERESE AR
WREHER LS AR TS

B o

(i) XBEOF
R B B E A X
BHARR - BB E 2
GEE FAMEV RN
HEREE  WWESAE
BEAMELRBERMET
P Az 2 NFE - T8
ZRERBRAARESR
HMELAZEMEERE
(AN S - iR e
R EERRERE G &
EzABRNEEREARA
EMFERNKRBRBZ A
FEFE - AEERERH
BRI BB ERE - BAFE
SR IR AR a5 15 R UL B
77 F] R R A E B RERR
%EZttWJﬁEwBA%EZHSZﬁ%H
AR IR R AR o

W B AR BE R AT EE A B XX
8 o

W X & 0T 5B R
7 BIEBLERMBREZ
U E 77 AR 2 7O U B
HEBZzEmESRKER
Mz ATFEEHRTE A
BEMTEMES ZEM
BB NIERER o

Annual Report 2015/2016
2015/2016 FF 1




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FESTHEMEE)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FESTHEMEE)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners of the
subsidiary. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously

recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
(“Executive Directors”) that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance costs, net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains,
net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.4

25

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the companies in the Group or for sale
in the ordinary course of business, are classified as
investment properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of investment properties are calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful life of 50 years.

The investment properties’ residual value and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

Investment properties’ carrying amounts are written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
investment properties’ carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
determined by comparing the proceeds and the carrying
amount of the investment property and is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 ¥ BRERSZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate cost over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Computer equipment 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement
of financial position date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets
(a) Acquired trademark

Acquired trademark that have definite useful life
of 5 years are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the costs of acquired trademark
over its estimated useful life.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

Computer software development costs recognised
as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of not exceeding 5 years.

(c) Patents and licences

Expenditure on acquiring licences for sale of
products is initially recognised and measured at
fair value, which represent the capitalisation of
unavoidable licence fee payments in accordance
with the licence agreements. Cost of licences is
amortised using the straight-line method over the
licence period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.9 Financial assets and liabilities

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets and
liabilities as loans and receivables and financial
liabilities at amortised costs respectively. The
classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets and liabilities were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are
classified as ‘trade receivables’, ‘deposits,
prepayments, and other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.10 Inventories

2.1

Inventories representing merchandising stocks are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
weighted-average costing method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered as indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement within
selling and distribution costs. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
accounts for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
selling and distribution costs in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of three
months or less.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are re-classified as held for
sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
FTESTBERBE@E)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Outside basis differences
Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
statement of financial position date.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is
recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Pension obligations

The group companies in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant government authorities
for its employees in the PRC and contribute to
these plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis,
up to a maximum fixed monetary amount, as
stipulated by the relevant government authorities.
The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees under these
plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in
a mandatory provident fund (‘MPF Scheme’) for
its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are required to contribute 5%
of the employees’ salaries, up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee per month. The assets
of MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. At each statement of financial
position date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.19

2.20

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates,
returns and discounts and after eliminated sales within
the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESTHRBEE)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.21

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail outlets for
selling footwear. Sales of goods are recognised
when a group entity sells a product to the
customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card.

Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of footwear products
in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has
full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesale’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery does not occur until the
products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the wholesaler, and either
the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Licence fee and royalty

Licence fee and royalty income is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreements.

Rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FESTHEMEE)

2.22 Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentive received from the
lessor and exclusive of any turnover rental payments
which are calculated by reference to a pre-determined
percentage of a tenant’s monthly sales) are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Turnover rental payments are
recognised on an accrual basis.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment,
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other short-term and other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

ot %5 [ By '

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk, price risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial
structure and the current operations of the Group,
no major hedging activities are undertaken by
management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

MREBERE)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Transactions are mainly conducted in
the functional currency of each group entity and
therefore the foreign currency risk is considered to
be minimal.

The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing asset. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk.

At 31 March 2016, one of the Group’s borrowings
denominated in New Taiwan dollar was carried at
fixed rate but exposed the Group to a minimal fair
value interest rate risk. Borrowings denominated
in HK dollar were carried at variable rate. As
at 31 March 2016, if interest rate of borrowings
denominated in HK dollar had increased/
decreased by 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis
points) with all other variables constant, the
Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
would have been approximately HK$167,000
(2015: HK$83,500) higher/lower.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, as well as credit exposures to trade
and other receivables. Management has policies
in place to monitor the exposures to these credit
risks on an on-going basis. Deposits are placed
with major and sizeable banks with high credit
ratings and management expects no losses from
non-performing banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

MREBERE)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 60 days from the invoice date.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have no
significant defaults in the past.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that wholesale sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

The Group also makes deposits (current and non-
current) for rental of certain of its retail sales point
with the relevant landlords. Management does not
expect any loss arising from non-performance by
these counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting dates is the fair value of each class
of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s primary cash requirements have
been for working capital and capital expenditures.
The Group finances its cash requirements
primarily through funds generated from operations
and short-term borrowings from banks. As at
31 March 2016, the Group had total banking
facilities of approximately HK$112,888,000
(2015: HK$162,056,000), of which approximately
HK$44,920,000 (2015: HK$25,040,000)
were drawn down as bank borrowings
while approximately HK$9,790,000 (2015:
HK$9,166,000) bank guarantee was utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the statement of financial
position date to the contractual maturity date. The
accounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

MERERREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MEBERBEZRE)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) TEEZEEE)
Within Between
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
1FR 1EE58E et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2016: MR2016 53 A311 :
Borrowings =P 44,948 — 44,948
Trade payables JERTE S 5RIE 104,026 — 104,026
Other payables, accruals HAthfET3RIE - FEET
and other liabilities ERNEMEE 41,246 10 41,256
190,220 10 190,230
As at 31 March 2015: A2015F3 8318 :
Borrowings (== 25,071 — 25,071
Trade payables FERTE S 5RIE 101,396 — 101,396
Other payables, accruals HAthfET3RIE - FEET
and other liabilities BERKAEMARE 53,312 128 53,440
179,779 128 179,907
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BEXERERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to NEFEBEEEA Y BIZAEEARE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going B ERE - LAREIRMHE R
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders RAHMPBDERRNZ - BARRE
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an XIEZ B AREEE AR E R o
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BIRFRABRELRGEE  AEBEHE
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to ARRKNTRRZREEE REE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new RFIRE - BT EEER
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. KER -
The Group’s capital structure is being reviewed annually REEETFRITERERE  URER
to ensure these objectives are to be achieved. ENZEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
B EREREE)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group’s strategy was to maintain a gearing ratio within
10-15%. The gearing ratios at 31 March 2016 and 2015
were as follows:

3.2 EBEXmfER(E)

AEBULEERBEAEEETE
Ko H ZE2016 F3A31H IFFE -
REBRBABEEAGL RER
B 10-15% A ° 722016 F 2 20154 3
AB1HZEEBGEREN T :

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Borrowings (Note 27) BE(Ki727) 44,920 25,040
Obligation under finance lease AT ERIE

(Note 25) (Hiit25) 115 221

Total debts BIA 4R 45,035 25,261

Total assets EERE 410,328 552,015

Gearing ratio EEAEBLE 11.0% 4.6%

Note: The calculation of gearing ratio is based on the total
debts divided by total assets as at 31 March.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
BRERHEFT RAE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
EXRETHETTRAEE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual
value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of any future management
determination of shop relocation or renovation.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the years in which such estimates have
been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)
EXREHETTRAEE)

(d) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

(e) Impairment of trade receivables

The policy of impairment assessment for trade
receivables of the Group is based on the current
market condition and the credit history of its customers
and department stores. Management reassesses the
provision at each date of statement of financial position.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

2EER

The Group is principally engaged in the retailing of footwear
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review
the Group’s financial information to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from a
geographic prospective. The Executive Directors assess
the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of segment loss without allocation of administrative
expenses, other gains, other income and finance income/
(costs), which is consistent with that in the financial
statements.

Segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred income tax
liabilities and obligation under finance lease.
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e M BHRRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEE R (E)

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are MR AHFMEMS - HEVIREPER
based on the country in which the customer is located, and KIEN - MEEBERERNM TIREEM
total assets and capital expenditure are based on the country TEBIRIEL -

where the assets are located.

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2016 are BHZE2016 F3A31 AIEFE 2 oA EEN
as follows: N

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HZ2016 3 A31 HILFE

Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Unallocated Total
B H =) ROE st
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue from sales of footwear,  REEE « RITRE
fashion wears and accessories FrensHs 2 Wz 182,972 646,486 11,200 - 840,658
Segment loss SEER (28,963)  (32,193) (864)  (83,846)  (145,866)
Finance income IBHA 224
Finance costs BBER (748)
Income tax expense FiERmEY (656)
Loss for the year AEEHE (147,046)
Other segment items are as HEHHEamT
follows:
Capital expenditure BARY 2,303 9,934 196 — 12,433
Depreciation of property, nE - BEREREZ
plant and equipment neE 5,208 10,002 183 — 15,393
Amortisation of intangible assets — EF & E 2 #i 229 944 - - 1,173
Impairment of property, plantand ~ #1% - BER&EL
equipment HE 1,586 - — — 1,586
Net (write-back of)/provision for 17 (& fE#ERE) /&
inventories 3 (5,519) 5,043 (323) - (799)
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e M BHRRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEE R (E)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2015 are BHZE2015F3A31 AIEFE 2o EEER
as follows: N

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHZE2015F3A31 BILFE

Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan  Unallocated Total
o i 48 KOE it

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FETL FEL FETL FET FETL

Revenue from sales of footwear, ~ HKEEHE - HITRER

fashion wears and accessories e ehie & 2 W 213,207 863,593 13,868 — 1,090,668
Segment loss HEEE (10,600) (3,208) (273) (71,415) (85,496)
Finance income IBHA 212
Finance costs HKER (701)
Income tax expense PEERX (2,415)
Loss for the year AFEEER (88,400
Other segment items are as HEiHHEamT -

follows:

Capital expenditure BARAX 6,723 10,584 331 — 17,638
Depreciation of property, plant WE - BEREREZ

and equipment bk 5,540 12,360 190 — 18,090
Depreciation of investment REMEZNE

properties 154 — — — 154
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 2 #H 1,345 1,024 — - 2,369
Impairment of property, plantand %1% - BERREZ

equipment RE 698 — — — 698
Net (write-back of)/provision for 77 (&fE#ERE) /&

inventories T (5,658) 10,731 50 - 5,123
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e M BHRRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

PEER(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2016 are as R2016 F3A31TH Z DA EE KA BN
follows: I
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
BE H =) | st
HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET
Segment assets DEEE 93,825 311,242 5,261 410,328
Total assets BEHBE 410,328
Segment liabilities DEEE 73,869 109,479 6,727 190,075
Unallocated liabilities FolaE 1,568
Total liabilities =N 191,643
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2015 are as MR2015F3A3MA N HEERBEN
follows: ™
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
BB A B 5T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT FET FET
Segment assets DEEE 123,250 416,307 6,367 545,924
Unallocated assets KOBEE 6,091
Total assets BEME 552,015
Segment liabilities HEEE 52,096 120,657 6,876 179,629
Unallocated liabilities AOBEEE 7,212
Total liabilities BERR 186,841
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

EMESEZBEX
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Purchase of and changes in inventories BEATFER1FSEH 358,141 468,628
Auditor's remuneration ZEETEN S
— Audit service — ZERB 1,500 1,615
— Non-audit service — e B R 662 374
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREHEZ
equipment (Note 14) e Wiz 14)
— owned assets — BBEZEE 15,281 17,977
— leased assets — HECEE 112 113
Impairment of property, plant and Wz - BERE#EZ
equipment (Note 14) BB (HaE 14) 1,586 698
Provision for impairment of trade EWE S5
receivables BB 1,134 —
Depreciation of investment properties REMEZITE — 154
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E B
(Note 16) (H1iz 16) 1,173 2,369
Written off of other receivables Lt Y SR IE M 5 769 617
Operating lease rental in respect of HETHREFZ
leasehold land and buildings KEHERS
— minimum lease payments — HEHEEFE 31,206 39,183
— turnover rental expenses — REEBTE AT 269,952 323,460
Advertising and promotion expenses EBEREERE 19,563 21,044
Net (write-back of)/provision for GFE(BERRD) BE
inventories HER (799) 5,123
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EBRAFZ (Hi79) 217,391 236,572
Other expenses B 82,584 75,660
Total cost of sales, selling and HERAR - SHE R
distribution costs and administrative DI R AT E A
expenses 4% 1,000,255 1,193,587

Expenses by nature of the Group has been presented in the RiEE WK 2 2 ANEBRME 55 2
consolidated income statement as follows: T

2016 2015
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of sales SHE RN 357,342 473,751
Selling and distribution costs $HE R IR 545,336 630,998
Administrative expenses 1THE A 97,577 88,838
1,000,255 1,193,587
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7  OTHER GAINS, NET
Htlss - 8

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale  HEFAELEEE 2 W 9,848 —
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREHEZ
plant and equipment (EB18), W= (194) 5,925
Gain on disposal of investment properties &R EWE 7 Wz — 2,946
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains HNEE (J&518) e FE (200) 1,517
9,454 10,388
8 OTHER INCOME
Hb g A
2016 2015
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Licence fee and royalty income BErEAERENERA 811 763
Government subsidies BT B 718 4,732
Others Hi 2,748 1,540
4,277 7,035
The Group received grants mainly from the tax authorities AEERER L RIEERERMEZERSP
in the PRC for its investment and development in Shanghai I 754 765 R LCER AR B - T T HE SR B BR 2
region, the conditions specified in the government approval BHERFEREELEK °
were fully achieved during the year.
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
BEEGAIFEZ(BEESEH2)
2016 2015
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TAREL 182,816 200,671
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RKE A — SE M T2 29,696 30,357
Share option expenses BRI 2 = 114
Welfare and other expenses B R EAMES 4,879 5,430
217,391 236,572
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
EEGAMEZ(BREEEMS) (&)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) BEESFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FRN AEEBREZFMALERE
highest in the Group during the year include three —&(2015%F : MAB)ESE - EHMES
directors (2015: two) whose emoluments are reflected PHFEI0 29 2 DT 5K o ERTER
in the analysis presented in Note 30. The emoluments TATZMEHET :

payable to the remaining individuals are as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EX# 4% - (£FE285
allowances and benefits-in-kind HAh28E R E YN &= 2,017 3,099
Share options expenses BB RER 2 — 20
Contributions to pension plans RIREET AR 18 35
2,035 3,154
The emoluments fell within the following bands: & B AR T
2016 2015
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 %5 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /&2
2,000,000/% 7T 1 2
2 3
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10

11

FINANCE COSTS, NET
BEER FH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Finance income B RS UR A
__— Interestincome from deposits  — FHLALMA 224 212
Finance costs B 75 & A
— Interest on bank borrowings — RITEEZF B (736) (689)
— Interest on obligation under finance — BMERERE
lease sy (12) (12)
(748) (701)
Finance costs, net B ER - FHE (524) (489)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Fresimx

The amount of income tax expense charged to the

consolidated income statement represents:

REARERNBZAEHAXERA

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current income tax RUEAFR 1S3

— Hong Kong profits tax — BHAEFEH = —
— PRC corporate income tax — PR ERMER 157 445

— Under/(over)-provision in respect of — BAEFEBEIE
prior year (EBEERAE) 185 (1,492)
342 (1,047)
Deferred income tax (Note 17) BIEFBB(HE17) 314 3,462
656 2,415

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Hong
Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the Group has
no assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2016 and

2015.
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
FRBimM< ()

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities as follows:

RERBIRFT AT AT RS 1R 2 B R B {50 A i AR
REEABREN 2 EFHRERFEZIER
TEIERAOT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before income tax Rt FTiS AT E 18 (146,390) (85,985)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REERRERANENZ
applicable to profits in the respective I F AT E 2
countries HiE (35,851) (13,186)
Income not subject to tax BIERR Z WA (2,297) (2,522)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A~ A {EFSIEHE I 2 FI 5L 315 250
Deductible temporary differences not RUER AT AN E R =58
recognised 1,015 3,402
Tax losses not recognised WEER 2 BB EE 37,068 10,129
Reversal of deferred tax assets BAFERRCBELEHIEEE
recognised in prior year #E [ 5,925 5,834
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAEFEREEBETIR
prior year (FRRBR M) 185 (1,492)
Reversal of withholding tax on unremitted 1 [E1 K [E X & F 2
earnings B (5,704) —
Tax charge TIE ST 656 2,415

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24% (2015:
15%) for the year. The increase is caused by a change in the
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
respective countries.

There is no tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year (2015: Nil).
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12 LOSS PER SHARE
BRER
(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(a) EX

BREANERIVRBAFEANRE
SR B ARGEBERRUAFRNEERITE
B EFHBBEE -

2016 2015
Loss attributable to equity holders of the AN GIHEZIFH AEEZ
Company (HK$'000) EB(FET) (146,044) (87,420)
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITEBRR 2 METH
shares in issue ('000) HE(FHK) 630,076 623,560
Loss per share attributable to equity PAYNSIE:ZES TSN
holders of the Company s BIREE
(HK cents per share) (RN (23.18) (14.02)

(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary share
outstanding during the years.

13 DIVIDEND
RE

The Board has recommended not to declare dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Furniture,
Land and improve- Motor fixturesand ~ Computer
buildings ments vehicles  equipment  equipment Total
B £E
THRET AENEKE RE T R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr AT 1 1 T
At 1 April 2014 R201454 518
Cost KA 36,443 114,282 5,643 17,353 16,748 190,469
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (12,842)  (103,263) (5110)  (16202)  (12,666)  (150,083)
Net book amount REF8 23,601 11,019 533 1,151 4,082 40,386
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE2015F3A ALEE
Opening net book amount FNREEFE 23,601 11,019 533 1,151 4,082 40,386
Exchange differences ERES — (7) (1) 1 3 (4)
Additions NE - 16,400 - 400 506 17,306
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEZRENE (1,202) - - - - (1,202)
Transfer to assets held for sales EREREFLEEE (1,219) - - - - (1219)
Disposals e (1,464) (57) - (13) 3) (1,537)
Depreciation ik (685) (15,102) (214) (585) (1,504) (18,090)
Impairment FE - (698) - - — (698)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 19,031 11,555 318 954 3,084 34,942
At 31 March 2015 R201563A8 310
Cost e 29,782 68,442 5,642 17,092 17,543 138,501
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (10,751)  (56,887) (5324)  (16,138)  (14459)  (103,559)
Net book amount TS 19,031 11,555 318 954 3,084 34,942
Year ended 31 March 2016 HZ2016F3A31ALEFE
Opening net book amount FOERFE 19,031 11,555 318 954 3,084 34,942
Exchange differences ERER - (224) (2 (12) (94) (332)
Additions nE - 11,431 - 356 90 11,877
Disposals e - (206) 0} (19) (27) (256)
Depreciation e (597)  (13,009) (112) (422) (1,253)  (15,393)
Impairment FE - (1,586) - - — (1,586)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 18,434 7,961 200 857 1,800 29,252
At 31 March 2016 R201653A8 310
Cost A 29,782 64,974 5,501 16,122 17,222 133,641
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE
impairment (11,348) (57,013) (5,341) (15,265) (15,422)  (104,389)
Net book amount REFE 18,434 7,961 200 857 1,800 29,252
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14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Mk BERREE)

Impairment loss arises from the recoverable amount of the
leasehold improvement is lower than the carrying amount.
The recoverable amount has been determined based on
value-in-use calculation, which involves estimating the future
cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use
of the asset and applying the appropriate discount rate of
those future cash flows.

Bank borrowing are secured on land and building for the
value of HK$18,434,000 (2015: HK$19,031,000).

(a) Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment has been charged to the consolidated
income statement as follows:

RHEEWERRETWRESRERED M
EERERE - AIRE B IREEBEE
AETAEE - ERSREAFEEREE
FTEEZ RFRERA SR AN ERZE
ARBESREZBERRE -

iR 17 &2 & LA B 18 18,434,000% 7T(2015
% 119,031,000 7T) 2 L M IEF{EE
R o

) ERBAKSZRTNBAEERY
% BERSEFENT :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Selling and distribution costs THE Ko HEAA 13,282 15,452
Administrative expenses 1TEE 2,111 2,638
15,393 18,090

(b) Property, plant and equipment held under finance
lease

Motor vehicles include the following amounts of which

(b) BREREHEREZUE - BEER

&

RERBEATAREREREEER

the Group is a lessee under a finance lease: EEAZEEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost — capitalised finance lease A — B2ERNMbz
MEMEE 451 451
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (291) (179)
160 272

The Group leased a motor vehicle under non-
cancellable finance lease agreement. The lease term is
4 years and ownership of the asset lies with the Group.

Walker Group Holdings Limited
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15

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year RELD
Cost (DN = 4,157
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiTE = (578)
Net book amount BRI FRE — 3,579
During the year FA
Opening net book amount FHREDFE = 3,579
Transfer from property, plant and EEAYE - RE R
equipment — 1,202
Depreciation e = (154)
Disposals HE = (824)
Transfer to assets held for sale ERERBELEAE
(Note 22) (Htet22) — (3,803)
Closing net book amount FREREFE = —
At the end of the year REFEHK
Cost %N = —
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE = —
Net book amount REDFEE — —
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BLEE

Licence Computer
Trademark fees software Total
EWE BEEAE B &4 et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2014 R2014%F4H81H
Cost BN 69,566 318 17,837 87,721
Accumulated amortisation and RFHEEE NORE
impairment (69,566) (318) (13,232) (83,116)
Net book amount AR FRE — — 4,605 4,605
Year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2015%3H31H
IEEE
Opening net book amount FYRMEFEE — — 4,605 4,605
Exchange differences M H =58 — — 2 2
Additions NE — — 332 332
Amortisation s — — (2,369) (2,369)
Closing net book amount FRERE TR — — 2,570 2,570
At 31 March 2015 M2015%3 A31H
Cost PR 69,566 318 18,157 88,041
Accumulated amortisation and RETE ORI E
impairment (69,566) (318) (15,587) (85,471)
Net book amount BREF5E — — 2,570 2,570
Year ended 31 March 2016 HZ2016%F3H31H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHERME F58 — — 2,570 2,570
Exchange differences PE N =% — — (80) (80)
Additions NE — — 556 556
Amortisation iy — — (1,173) (1,173)
Closing net book amount FREREFE — — 1,873 1,873
At 31 March 2016 M2016 %3 A31H
Cost AR 69,566 318 18,491 88,375
Accumulated amortisation and RETEE ORI A
impairment (69,566) (318)  (16,618)  (86,502)
Net book amount BRI 58 — — 1,873 1,873
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16

17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
BLEE#)

Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the

EREGE KSR T R 2B EEHEW

consolidated income statement as follows: N
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Selling and distribution costs HE Ko A 159 400
Administrative expenses THER 1,014 1,969
1,173 2,369

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
IESEFRS B

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
is as follows:

EERBEEEREERBARBE 2N

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHEE = 6,091
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTBHAE (351) (5,990)
(351) 101
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is EEFTS AR BEFHMT
as follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year RE) 101 3,558
Exchange differences PE 3 Z= 5 (138) 5
Charged to the consolidated income ERERE W R R 0k
statement (Note 11) (et 11) (314) (3,462)
At the end of the year REFRK (351) 101
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17

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
ESEFRSH(4#)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as
follows:

FREEMRESHEERABZEH (TR
R - B AERAER ZAAEEFE) AT

Deferred income tax assets: RIEFFSHEE -
Provision
4]
HK$000
FET
As at 1 April 2014 R2014F4H1H 9,547
Exchange differences M H =58 6
Charged to the consolidated income EREREIERFNR
statement (3,462)
As at 31 March 2015 R2015F 3 A31H 6,091
Exchange differences P& 3 =5 (166)
Charged to the consolidated income ERERE W TR 0k
statement (5,925)

As at 31 March 2016 20163 A31H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxation profits is probable.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised
temporary differences of approximately HK$712,903,000
(2015: HK$545,297,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses are subject to approval
by Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and the PRC
tax authority respectively, approximately HK$354,031,000
(2015: HK$297,034,000) of unrecognised tax losses have no
expiry date and the remaining loss of HK$226,579,000 (2015:
HK$122,846,000) will expire in 5 years.
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17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

EEFREB(E)
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFFEHAE
Withholding
tax on
dividend for Tax
undistributed depreciation
profits allowance Total
R K% F WIETE
REFEMB RBLE e
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET T
At 1 April 2014 M2014F4 A1 H 5,731 258 5,989
Exchange difference EHZE% 1 — 1
At 31 March 2015 20153 A31H 5,732 258 5,990
Exchange difference MEHZER (28) — (28)
(Credited)/charged to the BREGRERE RSP
consolidated income GUNVE
statement (5,704) 93 (5,611)
At 31 March 2016 20163 H31 H — 351 351
At 31 March 2016, deferred income tax liabilities of )\5/\\\2016%?’)% 318 ﬂﬂ%%:ﬁ?mg
HK$3,537,000 (2015: Nil) have not been recognised for the :&Ej\/ZﬂZEHj%%'JZEﬂiTﬁ?D%REEE@ﬁﬁFﬁ
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted Tﬁ‘%ﬂﬁ\1,%3,537,003}%75(2015?:5: ) o
earnings of certain subsidiaries in the PRC. The unremitted {T$%E{&TH§£H¢%%§Z%@E¢F§J ' /H%ﬁ
earnings are to be used for reinvestment. The income tax Eq%%ﬁ?\j{?}gﬁﬁéﬂﬁjﬁ%ﬁ@ - RUFTISHR
liability is not recognised where the timing of the reversal of BETTHR -

the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

18 INVENTORIES

78

Inventories represent merchandising stock. FREHEET °

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included FNER B WE AHEKARZFERA
in cost of sales during the year amounted to HK$358,141,000 ?%7353,141,0007%7E(2015¢ © 468,628,000
(2015: HK$468,628,000). BT °
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES

EWE 5 KA

Retail sales are in cash, by credit cards or collected by TEHEETNURE  ERAFHEEERAFR
department stores on behalf of the Group. The department RAEEPE - BERAR— MR BEHERR
stores normally settle the proceeds to the Group within 2 BE2 [EAANRAREESEMEHIEA -

months from the date of sales.

Wholesales are generally on credit terms ranging from 0 to #EZEEH-—HKRNFO0EI0H -
30 days.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date at the FEWE 5 FRIER B TSR 2k B HAHR 3 2 B A
statement of financial position date is as follows: EZERERONAT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
0 — 30 days 0—30H 50,649 75,009
31 — 60 days 31— 60 H 10,440 24,833
61 — 90 days 61— 90 H 2,866 2,787
Over 90 days 90 HIA k 10,102 12,395
74,057 115,024
Less: Provision for impairment of trade  J& - JEWWZE S RUAE Y
receivables B (1,118) —
72,939 115,024
As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$21,546,000 20163 A31H - /& W & 5 5 A
(2015: HK$39,104,000) were past due but not impaired. 271,54510007;% 75\(?015? : 318,10410007\3
These relate to a number of independent customers and E)E@fﬁﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁ@ cREHBEZ AW
> + N RN (e =
department stores for whom there is no recent history of ﬁ;ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬂ,ﬂ%ﬂﬁzziﬁl%}f kEERAR
ey f=> E2 1 .
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as B o AERBESHIAZ BRI -
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
1 — 30 days 1—30H 9,696 24,003
31 — 60 days 31 —60 H 2,866 2,836
61 — 90 days 61— 90 H 1,671 2,568
Over 90 days 90 HIA + 7,313 9,697
21,546 39,104
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

BWESREE)
As of 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$1,118,000 2016 53H31H " E W & 5 KX A
(2015: Nil) were considered impaired and were provided in 1,118,0008 7T(20154F « £ ) R A E R
full. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to B - WEFHE2EEE - @52 RERKR
department stores. An aging analysis of these receivables is HXEHEERFIBEH -  ZFERKE SHFIA
as follows: RO
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Over 90 days Q0B E 1,118 —
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade RWE SR ERER G ZBT
receivables are as follows:
2016 2015
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH) = —
Impairment of trade receivables (Note 6) FEWE 5 IBME (H1:£6) 1,134 —
Exchange differences FEH Z%E (16) —
At end of the year REFLL 1,118 —
The creation and release of provision for impaired e las R E A AR K& R CRER K
receivables have been included in the consolidated income FORRE o MR BER B RN BHE
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account R B EEINR £ R S o
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not FEME 5 508 ) H A SRR T 2 H A AR
include a provision for impairment of other receivables. I B FEELA UK IR 2 BB B o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date REE Rz ESEERBR ECREZE
is the fair values of trade receivables disclosed above. The WE SFIBATE - AEEWEIFEERE

Group did not hold any collateral as security. o R -
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
FEWE 5 RIE (&)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated FEWE 5FIE c RE SR TEBE -
in the following currencies:

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 676 897
Renminbi AR 71,144 112,650
New Taiwan dollar et 1,119 1,477
72,939 115,024
The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates its FEWE SR RESRERAFERS
fair value.
20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
e ARAREREMERRIE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FHET
Non-current portion: SERBNE S
Rental deposits Hekse 11,588 10,995
Other deposits Ehine 1,000 —
12,588 10,995
Current portion: mENE D
Deposits oA 14,814 29,753
Prepayments B A 4,285 2,832
Other receivables H b fE UL FRIE 1,091 837
Value-added tax recoverable A] Y Bl B 6,891 6,622
27,081 40,044
39,669 51,039
Denominated in: BATE®BHE :
Hong Kong dollar BT 22,641 32,115
Renminbi AR 16,421 18,642
New Taiwan dollar et 602 278
Others Hit 5 4
39,669 51,039
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20

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
R ANREREMERREE)

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values. The Group does
not hold any security. Approximately HK$769,000 have
been written off for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$617,000). No impairment provision has been made for
both years.

e  BANRERHEMERFIEZ REeHE
HEQNFEESE AEBEWEFEENE
o B E2016F3 A31 B IEFEEMEELY
769,000 7T (2015 4F : 617,00078 7T ) °

B9 \EAEHRBE R -

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
HeERBESEEER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITERFHRRE 41,039 94,939
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEEH 41,039 94,939

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial

REBPRERAZRE RIREFEEEEA

position are denominated in the following currencies: TE¥EE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Hong Kong dollar BT 10,028 14,185
Renminbi AR 29,335 78,034
United States dollar e 397 1,379
Others Hi 1,279 1,341
41,039 94,939

REBUAARBHEZIRE MRITHERT N
KRB ZIRTT - iU FERARBHE 2 B8R
SIBINE BB TR BBUR PR 2 INEE
BRA KB -

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in
Renminbi are placed with banks in the PRC. The conversion
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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22

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

BEELEEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
At the beginning of the year REA 5,022 —
Transfer from properties, plant and ERBEME BB
equipment (Note 14) JE(HEE14) — 1,219
Transfer from investment properties HEBEEREME
(Note 15) (Hiat15) — 3,803
Disposals & (2,912) —
At the end of the year REK 2,110 5,022

Certain properties located in Hong Kong previously classified
as investment properties and properties, plant and equipment
are presented as assets held for sale following the approval
of the Group’s management to locate the buyers for these
properties on 22 December 2014.

The fair value of assets held for sale are HK$13,900,000 as
at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$26,660,000). The valuations
are performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional valuer. The best evidence of fair
value is current prices in an active market or similar assets
held for sale.

Bank borrowings are secured on the assets held for sales for
the carrying value of HK$2,110,000 (2015: HK$5,022,000).

On 30 April 2015, Senet International Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, had completed the
sales transaction of a property for a consideration of
HK$5,630,000. On 9 April 2015, Trunari Enterprises
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, had completed the sales transaction of a property
for a consideration of HK$7,130,000. A gain on disposal
of assets held for sale in the amount of HK9,848,000 was
recognised as other gains during the year.

Management expects the remaining properties held for sale
will be sold within 12 months from the date of the statement
of financial position.
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23 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM

BRA KGR E
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
EBEREE EBEREE R EE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET FAET
Authorised EE
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and R2014F4 518U
2016 2015 % 20163 A31H 9,000,000,000 900,000 — 900,000
Issued and fully paid BRTRAR
At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 R2014F4 18K
201543 A 31H 623,560,000 62,356 562,600 624,956
Exercise of share options (Note) TERRAE () 17,800,000 1,780 13,961 15,741
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3 A31H 641,360,000 64,136 576,561 640,697
Note: Bzt -

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued
17,800,000 shares at a price of HK$0.6 each pursuant to the
exercise of 17,800,000 share options.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders’ written resolution of the
Company dated 21 May 2007. On 5 August 2009, share
options were granted to directors and to selected employees
under the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price determined by the board shall be at
least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the
grant date, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of the
shares. Options are conditional on the employee completing
1 to 5 year’s service (the vesting period). The options are
exercisable starting 1 year from the grant date. The Company
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash.
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H Z2016F3A3MHIEFE AR EHE
17,800,000 10 B J i 1T E MR &% 0.6 B L2
B4 %17 17,800,000 P& A& ©

BXRRAERRERETS

—IFE R T EI B RIBA A R B B A 2007
FEA2IAZHBRREARFZEEB R
(TERAESTE ] - K2009F8A5H &
AERIEEREAEMESE R EHREERR
R AR A o

RBELREFSETE  VARPRUATERA
ZE=E ¢ (a) ROV EH A (BARE:
FORBRXERRERMBIWTE : (b)
B0 i BRI B B AT 5 172 3¢ BB A A
AMERMBZFHUHE ()i
ZHE - BREAFRE K1 E5F RS
®R(BBH)TAMEE - BREATREREA
HE AT 1 FIRTTME - AR AL EIETE HIETE
BENR BRI ETBRE -
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23 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (Continued)

BARRBRE(E)
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRAMEREBRETE(E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and WARITEE 2 BEARERE « B8 R AR i
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FHITHEERT
Average
exercise
price in
Hong Kong Options
dollar per share (’000)
BRRGZ iR
BT EE (F)
At 1 April 2014 R2014F 41 H 0.60 19,180
Forfeited B84 0.60 (160)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F 3 A31H 0.60 19,020
Lapsed B R 0.60 (1,220)
Exercised 217{E 0.60 (17,800)
At 31 March 2016 74201643 A 31 8 — —
Movement in the number of share option vested are as EREB s BRESE o FauT :
follows:
2016 2015
Number of share option vested (’000) EEBCERESE (F1i7)
At 1 April R4 /81H 19,020 17,547
Vested 28 — 1,633
Lapsed BRM (1,220) (160)
Exercised BT (17,800) —
At 31 March 738318 — 19,020
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23 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (Continued)

BRI BRE(E)
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRLAHEREBRESTS(Z)

The shares option outstanding under the Post-IPO share RELIRE R AREREBIRERTSIMK

option scheme (in thousands) at the end of the year have the T ERE(TR)2EBRRE - EmBH
following vesting date, expiry date and exercise price: RATEEWT -
Exercise
price in
Hong Kong
dollar Number of share options (’000)

Grant date Vesting date Expiry date per share outstanding at 31 March
BRERHZ R3A BERITHEZ

RHAH BEAH &% B 8 BTITEE BRERE (1)

2016 2015
5 August 2009 5 August 2010 4 August 2017 0.60 — 3,340
20098 A5H 201048H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2011 4 August 2017 0.60 — 3,920
20098 A5H 201148H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2012 4 August 2017 0.60 — 3,920
20098 A5H 201248H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2013 4 August 2017 0.60 — 3,920
200948 A5H 201348H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2014 4 August 2017 0.60 — 3,920
20098 H5H 201448H5H 201748H4H

— 19,020

FPARRA SR Z B S TV IRE R 1"
AHERVETF 2 HEFHE - Eﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬁﬂ%@
ZIEETMRE T ARERE

Share option expenses charged to the consolidated income
statement are based on valuation determined using binomial
lattice model. Share options granted were valued based on
the following assumptions:

Share

price at Annual

the date Exercise Expected risk-free Life of Dividend
Date of grant Option value of grant price volatility interest option yield

R A BRE FRBRER
RHAH BREEE ZROER fTEfE AHKE FEERBANE TEAFH ZKRE
5 August 2009 0.2689-0.3083 0.57 0.60 66.368% 2.344% 8 years 2.59%
200948 A5H 8%

AREBRE 2 FRHRIEHRER MR F LA
Hi 2 E 2R IR M E

Expected volatility of the Group’s share price was based on
the historical volatility of the share as at the date of grant.

RERTZERP I ERAERERZ (2015
F : 86,000/87C) ©

No share option expense (2015: HK$86,000) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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23

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (Continued)
BRAR mE(#)

Share Purchase Option Scheme

A share purchase option scheme was adopted by Smart
Presto Holdings Limited (“Smart Presto”) in August 2009
(the “Share Purchase Option Scheme”). Smart Presto
established a scheme to provide for the grant of options
to purchase shares beneficially owned by Smart Presto
to certain employees, officers, consultants, including any
executive or non-executive directors, of any member of the
Group who in the opinion of the Remuneration Committee
have contributed or will contribute to the achievement of the
economic objectives of the Group.

Options to purchase a total of 10,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 1.6% of the Company’s total
issued share capital immediately after the date of grant, at
the exercise price of HK$0.6 per share were granted under
the Share Purchase Option Scheme.

The maximum number of share available for purchase on the
exercise of options shall be 30,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 4.82% of the Company’s total issued share
capital immediately after the date of grant.

Share purchase options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholder’s meetings.

Movements in the number of share purchase options
outstanding and their weighted average exercise prices are
as follows:

R EEERETE

R B BR A B[ E]) KR2009F8
FRWBMHBERTI(RDBEE R
Bl - BIERY—EE mEFHEEER
AEYREHAEEZEERIZEMERZ
AREBTMKEARZETIES - THRAE
SEM (BETANTHRIENTER) REE
feiE - EEFEESEE 2RH

A B B 4 310,000,000 A% B% 10 (B & 7 4
NN BHERHBEE 2 ERITRARSE
4)1.6%) 2 BIRES RIBER M E B &SR
d o ITEEAEER06ETT -

THEERERTBEERNBERS A
30,000,000 f% * FHE AR R A EHE & T
HEAfR 2 BB 1TIR AN 4B 5047 4.82% ©

B BERYEETRHEAZAREINK
RREG EREZHEN -
RARTTEZ IR BERERE < S8 M E g
FHITEEDT

Average
exercise price in

Hong Kong dollar Options

per share (’000)

BRERMZ BB e

BRI EE (F12)

At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 7201444 A1 8 X% 201543 A 31 H 0.60 6,000
Lapsed B 0.60 (6,000)

At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H

0.60 —

Movement in the number of share purchase option vested
are as follows:

ERBRNBERRE Z2EBMT

2016 2015
Number of share purchase option BB RNIEEESE
vested (’000) (?:/ﬁ)
At 1 April R4 /1H 6,000 5,500
Vested [ — 500
Lapsed B R (6,000) —
At 31 March M3HA31H — 6,000
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23 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (Continued)

RA R wE(E)
Share Purchase Option Scheme (Continued) RO EEETE(E)
Exercise
price in Number of share options under
Hong Kong Share Purchase Option Scheme
dollar (’000)

Grant date Vesting date Expiry date per share outstanding at 31 March

R BB E

BRERHZ R3A3 BERITHEZ

R B o Rk &% B BITITEE BREHAE (T40)

2016 2015
5 August 2009 5 August 2010 4 August 2017 0.60 — 1,200
20098 45H 201048H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2011 4 August 2017 0.60 — 1,200
20098 H5H 201148H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2012 4 August 2017 0.60 — 1,200
20098 A5H 201248H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2013 4 August 2017 0.60 — 1,200
200948 A5H 201348H5H 201748H4H
5 August 2009 5 August 2014 4 August 2017 0.60 — 1,200
20098 A5H 201448H5H 201748H4H

— 6,000

Share purchase option expenses charged to the consolidated
income statement are based on valuation determined using
binomial lattice model. Share purchase options granted were

valued based on the following assumptions:

Date of grant
RHAH

5 August 2009
200948 A5H

Expected volatility of the Group’s share price was based on

At AR B W ER R Z B B BRI S ThIRE A
“IRARMEEREE 2 BERE - DRER
NIBERZBMENKE TIRRKRAE

Share
price at
the date Exercise
Option value of grant price
RHBH
BREEE ZBRODER e
0.2689-0.3083 0.57 0.60

the historical volatility of the share as at the date of grant.

No share purchase option expense (2015: HK$28,000) was

recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Annual
Expected risk-free Life of Dividend
volatility interest option yield
BRE FRBRER
AHKE FEERBANE TEAFH ZBRE
66.368% 2.344% 8 years 2.59%
84

REBRE 2 AR IE RER R A
iz B RIRMETE

BAEWGERPITEERBROHEEERX
(20154 : 28,0008 7T) °
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24 RESERVES

#%E
Foreign  Share-based
Merger Statutory currency compen- Accumu-
reserve reserves translation sation lated
(Note i) (Note ii) reserve reserve losses Total
Cit=1] EERE HERR K&
(W) (Hiiti) 1 ffe ZitER @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT AT T TAT AT AT
Balance at 1 April 2014 201454 A1 B 28 22,002 23,954 57,191 29,397 (300,939) (168,395)
Currency translation differences [EXZ% - - (1,765) - — (1,765)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (87,420) (87,420)
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme &N AR EREBERE 2
— value of employee services — (EERFBEE
(Note 23) (Hiit23) — — - 86 - 86
Share Purchase Option Scheme &% Bi#:El
— value of employee services — (EERFBEE
(Note 23) (Hi#23) - - - 28 - 28
Balance at 31 March 2015 201553 A31 B2 &k 22,002 23,954 55,426 29,511 (388,359) (257,466)
Currency translation differences [& %% - - (11,427) - - (11,427)
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - (146,044) (146,044)
Exercise of share options ThERE
(Note 23) (Het2s3) - - - (29,511) 24,450 (5,061)
Balance at 31 March 2016 201653 A31 Bz &8 22,002 23,954 43,999 - (509,953) (419,998)
Notes: Haz -

U]

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries transferred to the Company in connection with the
reorganisation for the listing of the shares of the Company.

Companies which are established in the PRC are required
to make appropriations to certain statutory reserves from
profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years and before profit distribution to equity holders.
The percentages to be appropriated to such statutory reserve
funds are determined according to the relevant regulations
in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the respective
companies. Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset
accumulated losses, to increase capital, or for special bonus
or collective welfare of employees. These statutory reserves
cannot be distributed to equity holders of the Company.
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25

26

OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

A& EAIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Gross finance lease liabilities — BEHEABRE —
minimum lease payments: BEMBEMNK
Within one year —FA 118 118
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE-RZFERF(RREEEMT) 10 128
128 246
Less: Future finance charges B RRMEER (13) (25)
Present value of obligation under BB EAERE
finance lease 115 221
The present value of finance lease BMEAMEAERBENT
liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —FR 106 106
In the second to fifth year inclusive FCEERT(BIEEREMT) 9 115
Present value of obligation under A& ERIERE
finance lease 115 221

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum of
the obligation under finance lease was 2.5% (2015: 2.5%).

Interest rates are fixed at contract date. The lease was on
a fixed repayment basis. The obligation under finance lease
is secured by the lessor's charge over the leased asset.
The carrying amount of the obligation under finance lease
approximates its fair value and is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
BNEZRE - B BAREMENRE

MEREAREZNMBEFHERFERN XA
2.5% (20154 : 2.5%) °

MERAHBERETE - BOZETEREE
R MEREAEANLBEAZHEEEM
REEM - mEHERE RIS BERARD
FEMRE - XLABTTEE -

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade payables BINE S FE 104,026 101,396
Accruals and other payables FEETE B & E AL FE 508 41,129 53,193
145,155 154,589
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26 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)
ENEZNRE - EotERAREMENRIEE)

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: JERTE SFIE R DT -

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

0 — 30 days 0—30 H 48,359 91,290
31 — 60 days 31 — 60 H 32,030 1,283
61 — 90 days 61— 90 H 13,820 326
Over 90 days 90 HIA k 9,817 8,497
104,026 101,396

The amounts are repayable according to normal trade terms S FRE—WE B RKENI0E0HA
from 30 to 90 days. Big -

ENE SR - Bt ERREMBENKIEZ

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, accruals and 5
RESFEERATESE

other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 33,585 31,802
Renminbi AR 109,478 120,658
New Taiwan dollar e 1,807 1,836
Others HAh 285 293
145,155 154,589
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27

BORROWINGS
BE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term bank loan — secured RHRITER — BIRHF 44,920 25,040

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

EEZRESBRATEREE -

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 40,000 20,000
New Taiwan dollar e 4,920 5,040
44,920 25,040

The bank loans are repayable in range of 30 days to 90 days
from the date of issuance.

At 31 March 2016, a bank loan of HK$4,920,000 (2015:
HK$5,040,000) is interest bearing at a fixed rate of 2.75%
(2015: 2.75%) and secured by the Group’s standby letter of
credit amounting to US$1 million, a promissory note of New
Taiwan dollar 28 million co-made by the Group and the non-
controlling shareholder.

At 31 March 2016, a bank loan of HK$40,000,000 (2015:
HK$20,000,000) is interest bearing at Hong Kong Inter Bank
Offered Rate (the “HIBOR”) plus 2% (2015: HIBOR plus 2%)
per annum and secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and assets held for sale (Notes 14 and 22).

The fair value of the bank loan equals its carrying amount,
as the impact of discounting is not significant due to its short
maturity.
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=41
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§

720163 831 H * iR 77 & 74,920,000
7 70 (2015 4F : 5,040,00078 7t ) 3% [E & A
&2 75% (20154 : 2.75%) 5t & - I LA
%£E 21,000,000 =L ERERAM » LARAK
& B B IE AR IR R A B E T 2 28,000,000
Faw 2 B ZEER -

7201643 31 H * 77 E 540,000,000
777, (2015 4 : 20,000,000 7T ) 1% & 7 4R
TRIZEFR BN 2% FF|E(2015F : HHIR
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28 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEEERER
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) REFEHABEREKEERTAZ
used in operations e Z2HR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before income tax RETFTIS TR E 18 (146,390) (85,985)
Adjustments for: HTHSBEELAE
— Depreciation of property, plant — W BEREEC
and equipment e 15,393 18,090
— Depreciation of investment — REWMEIE
properties — 154
— Impairment of property, plantand — %% - BEL&EZ
equipment pERIE] 1,586 698
— Amortisation of intangible assets =~ — EFEE 7 # 1,173 2,369
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of — HEWE  BEREREZ
property, plant and equipment &ia, () 194 (5,925)
— Gain on disposal of investment — HEREME 2 W=
properties — (2,946)
— Gain on disposal of assets held — HERBEEREEEL
for sale Iz (9,848) —
— Interest income — FIEHBA (224) (212)
— Interest expense — FERMEZ 748 701
— Share option expenses — AR = 114
Changes in working capital: EEEeH
— Inventories —FE 13,180 78,022
— Trade receivables — BB H5RIE 38,351 4,631
— Deposits, prepayments and other — &% « BN FIEK
receivables H fth fE U TRIR 10,816 13,791
— Trade payables — EE S50R 4,956 (26,744)
— Accruals and other payables — [EFT B A REMEN IR (10,870) (18,627)
Cash used in operations KEFAZRS (80,935) (21,869)
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28 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)
HERERERE)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEVE BMERREZFRERE
equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds RiFERESRERT  LEWME - |
from disposal of property, plant and equipment EREREZEETIBEBIE -
comprise:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net book amount (Note 14) BREFRE (Wit 14) 256 1,537
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - WERE#E
plant and equipment (Note 7) (EB8]) W (Hez7) (194) 5,925
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEmE - W%&?&ﬁz
plant and equipment FriS kT 62 7,462
(c) Proceeds from disposal of investment properties (c) HEREWMEXZFMENE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds RiEaRenExRY  LEREME
from disposal of investment properties comprise: LTS HRIERLE -
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net book amount (Note 15) BREFRE (M 15) — 824
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME
properties (Note 7) Was K1z 7) — 2,946
Proceeds from disposal of investment [H&EREWE
properties P15 308 — 3,770
(d) Proceeds from disposals of assets held for sale (d) HEREEHEEEZMEBRE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds REaRERERT  HEFHED
from disposals of assets held for sale: EEEZFIBRIBRE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Net book amount (Note 22) BREFRE (Wit 22) 2,912 —
Gains on disposals of assets held HERBIEHEEEL
for sale (Note 7) Wz (et 7) 9,848 —

Proceeds from disposals of assets HERBEHEEEL
held for sale PG RIE 12,760 —
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29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
KRB zMBRAERFERD

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EATZHBHEMRRR
As at 31 March
M3A31AH
2016 2015
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
et FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A SIEINEIPE £ 342,701 466,884
B anvl 466,884
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivables Hth & W k1B 267 214
Amount due from a subsidiary NG 2,167 2,167
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEHEER 416 596
2,850 2,977
Total assets EERE 345,551 469,861
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable 2T IEHE AEN
to equity holders of the R #E
Company
Share capital &% A 64,136 62,356
Share premium 10 & E 576,561 562,600
Share-based compensative %t #85 (E {7 18
reserve 29(b) — 29,511
Accumulated losses REtEE 29(b) (298,385) (186,230)
Totalequity ] ot 842312 468,237
LIABILITIES i=Ri
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E A FE S FRIR 3,239 1,624
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEBEE 345,551 469,861
The financial statements were approved by the Board s ®mAMR2016 F6 A0B K EESHE
of Directors on 30 June 2016 and were signed on its o WHAERRRE -
behalf.
Zhu Xiaojun Kang Jianming
KREE ER3E R
Director Director
EFE EZE
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29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
ERBRZBMBRREREEED ()

(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) AATzREEEE

Share-based
compensation Accumulated

reserve losses Total
R EEREE Rt EiE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FEITL FEL
At 1 April 2014 R2014% 4 A1H 29,397 (68,323) (88,926)
Loss for the year NEEEE — (117,907) (117,907)
Post-IPO Share Option BIRAFE RIE AR
Scheme — value of 8 — EERBEEB
employee services (Note 23) (K15t 23) 86 — 86
Share Purchase Option &t i BT
Scheme — value of — EERBEE
employee services (Note 23) (Ht523) 28 — 28
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A31 A 29,511 (186,230) (156,719)
Loss for the year NEEFEBRE — (136,605) (136,605)
Exercise of share options eacdiie
(Note 23) (Ht323) (29,511) 24,450 (5,061)
At 31 March 2016 R2016F 3 A31H — (298,385) (298,385)
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
EEREAKES (FEDQERGI(5622F) 5 383
R RRAMBEESNRER)RPI(F622GE) RE

BETRAREZHE)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBETHRAEZHE
The remuneration of every director and the chief HZE2016F K2015F3HA31H [ F
executive for the year ended 31 March 2016 and B EEERESITHRAE ZHMEH
2015 is set out below: T
For the year ended 31 March 2016: EZE2016F3 A31HIEFE :
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
HEAEZ(FRALRAANRAR) LA LEXAARY M
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other
services in
connection
Remunerations with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated  contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value to inrespect of of the
of other  a retirement accepting  company or
Discretionary Housing benefit benefit office as its subsidiary
Name Fees Salary bonuses allowance (Note a) scheme director  undertaking Total
Ezpien
) ) LIEEED]
BhERy AREES LISREMS
L EHEREE BORARE: ExfIEbe AHEEEx
% 53 it hierd i34 (Wita) Exitx B aEkEe L
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
FET FET AT FAT FAT FAT FET FET AT
Executive Directors:
yfiEs:
Mr. Zhu Xiao/%'u‘n‘ (Note b) - - - - - - - - -
REERL (b
Ms. Chan Mei Sheung (Note c) - 1,934 - 480 - 18 - - 2,432
REERL(iite)
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming (Note o - 1,541 - - - 18 - - 1,559
3 Ll
Mr. Hung Tin Chun (Note ¢) - 591 - - - 17 - - 608
ARERE (Hie)
M. Kang Jianming (Note f) - 283 - - - - - - 283
RRBLE WY
Mr. Wang Lingxiao (Note g) - 1 - - - - - - 1
TAERE hitg)
Non-executive Director:
g%
Mr. Chen Min/g‘z‘hong (Note g) - 51 - - - - - - 51
RESAL Bty
Independent Non-executive
Directors:
BUFHfES:
Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael
!Note o 264 - - - - - - - 264
FETEE(Mith)
Dr. Fan Yiu Kwan, JP ](Note h) 240 — - - - - — — 240
ERYBLATALILN
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Note h) 240 - - - - - - - 240
FOREE W)
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (Continued)
ESEARER(EBRARMERDI(5£622F )58 383 1% ~ &
R(EBEESAEER)ROI(E622GE)REB LTHRER

REZWE)(£)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRESTERAEBZME(E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (restated): HE2015F3A31B tFEKE

5)

Certain of the comparative information of directors’ HZE2015F3A31BIEFEBAER
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015 BAIARGHBEcEEMe 2 E T
previously disclosed in accordance with the predecessor LLEBERBIEEY - UFEBERA
Companies Ordinance have been restated in order to Bl (E 622 F) 2 FEE RIRE -

comply with the new scope and requirements by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAES(FRARLARERELR) 2 ALEXAAEYZME

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other
services in
connection
Remunerations with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated  contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value to inrespect of of the
of other  a retirement accepting  company or
Discretionary Housing benefit benefit office as its subsidiary
Name Fees Salary bonuses allowance (Note a) scheme director  undertaking Total
Ezgien
) ) L IEEED]
BhERy HAEES LSREMS
L EHEREE BARARE: ExfIEbe AHREEx
4 g Wt hiadl i34 (Wita) Exitx B aEkEe 88

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$’(500 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
7L 7L TEL TET AT TEL 7L 7L TEL

Executive Directors:
YES:

Ms. Chan Mei Sheung (Note c) - 1,926 - 480 20 17 - - 2,443
RESu (i)
Mr. Kiu Wai Ming (Note d - 1,538 - - 20 17 - - 1,575
BhBLE i)
Mr. Hung Tin Chun (Note ¢) - 639 - - 9 17 - - 665
ARELEW )

Independent Non-executive

Directors:
BUFUTES:
Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael

(Noteh) 264 - - - - - - - 264
SEVEL(WEn)
Dr. Fan Yiu Kwan, JP Z(Note h) 240 - - - - - - - 240
ERpRLIATALHLn
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Note h) 240 - - - - - - - 240
FOREE W)
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30

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (Continued)
EEEARER(FEBLRKRG(5£622F)5383% ~ A
A(HREESANEER) AN (F626E)REEBLHHRA
REZIKE) (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Note a Other benefits include leave pay and share options.

Note b Mr. Zhu Xiaojun was appointed as an executive
director with effect from 3 February 2016.

Note ¢ Ms. Chan Mei Sheung had resigned as an executive
director with effect from 26 April 2016.

Note d Mr. Kiu Wai Ming was also the chief executive officer
of the Company and had resigned as an executive
director and the chief executive officer with effect
from 26 April 2016.

Note e Mr. Hung Tin Chun was appointed as an executive

director on 16 September 2014 and had resigned as

an executive director with effect from 24 February

2016.

Mr. Kang Jianming was appointed as an executive

director with effect from 3 February 2016.

Note g Mr. Wang Lingxiao was appointed as an executive
director and Mr. Chen Mingzhong was appointed as
a non-executive director with effect from 24 February
2016.

Note h  Mr. Sze Tsai Ping, Michael, Dr. Fan Yiu Kwan, JP and
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung had resigned as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2016.

Note f

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits related to defined benefit plan for
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits for the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2015: Nil).
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30

31

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (Continued)
EEEARER(FEBLAKRG(5£622F)5%383 %K~ A
A(HREESANEERRAM(F62GE)REEBLTHHRA
REZIKE) (&)

(e)

()

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates
and connected entities of such directors (2015: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

i

(a)

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had no
capital commitments.
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REEMZ 5L HE(2015F « ) -

ESRXS  REREGNPZERE
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REZ2016F3A3THILFELER
ek F N EREERE  MELAARES
EARRNBFT Y ERRRESEH
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31

COMMITMENTS (Continued)
EEE)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

(b)

The future aggregate minimum lease payments and
turnover rental expenses under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops, offices,
warehouses and furniture, fixtures and equipment are

REHERE

REFHETERE PLRE  RERK
il RERREBZAAHEEEHEE
KB &2 &IEBEE MR RIZE KRG
BeHSBRZEBEWT

as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings T RIEF
— No later than 1 year —1%FR 52,316 69,476
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FRBRETZNEF
than 5 years 35,774 52,569
.. 88090 122,045
Furniture, fixtures and equipment Rk HERKE
— No later than 1 year —1FR 222 221
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FRETZNEF
than 5 years 332 554
554 775
88,644 122,820

Leases are negotiated for varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal options. The operating lease
rentals of certain outlets are based on the higher of a
minimum guaranteed rental and a sales level based
rental. The above operating lease commitments include

commitments for fixed rent only.

In addition, rental payable in some cases include
additional rent, calculated according to gross revenue,

in excess of the fixed rent.
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32

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
EXBEBALIRS

Before 8 October 2015, the Group was controlled by Smart
Presto Holdings Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands) which owned 71.03% of the Company’s shares. The
ultimate controlling party of the Group was Ms. Chan Mei
Sheung.

Following the liquidation of Smart Presto Holdings Limited
on 8 October 2015, Ms. Chan Mei Sheung and her two
daughters directly hold 60.35% of the share and remained as
the ultimate controlling party of the Group.

On 14 January 2016, China Consume Elderly Care Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Seychelles became the
ultimate holding company of the Company. As at 31 March
2016, China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited owns
74.96% of the Company’s shares.

As at 31 March 2016, the ultimate controlling party of the
Group is Mr. Zhu Xiaojun.

During the year, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

MR2015F 10 A8 H Al » AN &% B X fiEE
BERAR(REBEZHSFMA )=
Hl > HEBARTF71.08% %1 - NEE 2
REIERA L AREE L -

MR2015F10 A8 H B EER B R A 8E
BB BREELLILEMEBLREERE
60.35% %10 - AR BRER 2 HREZERA
i °

R2016F1 148 FEHBEZERE
BAR(REEBHEMBEMAL 2 AT
BARNRZREIZRAE > 122016 F 3 A
31 FEHESEZERERARIEE A
NA74.96% K17 °

R2016F3 A31H @ AEBZHKREERA
TRRBEFE LA -

AREBERNFRNEBAHRALETTIEAR
5 o

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Key management compensation FEFEABRE

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EAR#H & - (£FE 28 - Hih)EE,
allowances and benefits-in-kind EEYF @ 3,541 4,126
Share options expenses B AR 2 = 20
Contributions to pension plans RIKEFTEIHER 45 37
3,586 4,183

Note:
Key management includes directors and certain senior management

who have important roles in making operational and financial
decisions.
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33 SUBSIDIARIES

() N
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 T3 &K 20164F K2015F3A31H 2 £
March 2016 and 2015: ZHE R FIIEK -
Place of incorporation
and kind of Principal activities and Particulars of issued
Name of company legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
RAREMH MR EHREREREN IEXBREEREE CRITREFFE PR
2016 2015
Indirectly held:
BEEE
Artemis Footwear Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Retailing of footwear in 10,000,000 ordinary 65% 65%
company Taiwan shares
LRI EXERAA S BRRA TEER /A& 10,000,000 Az & &M%
#EERES(LF)BRAR  The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ US$1,000,000 100% 100%
Billion International Trading owned enterprise limited the PRC
(Shanghai) Company liability company
Limited"
hEHIEBECEBRAR TEEE/ME 1,000,000 % 7T
Senet International Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Holding of trademarks 10 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company in Hong Kong
BRERERATF BE ARAR BERE/BE 10 & @Ak
HBLESRINARAA The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ HK$41,000,000 100% 100%
Smart Trend Trading owned enterprise limited the PRC
(Shenzhen) Company liability company
Limited"
hE SNEBECEBERAR TEER/TH 41,000,000 % 7T
BEHEZULR)BRAE The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in  HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Smarter Trading (Beijing) owned enterprise limited the PRC
Company Limited' liability company
hECHIEBECEBRAR TEEE/PH 40,000,000 7% 7
Trunari Enterprises Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Holding of trademarks 22,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Company Limited company and properties in shares
Hong Kong
ENBEEBRAF BB ARAQA BAEMERYME/EE 22,000,000 KL ER
Walker Group China Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong
BEEE(PE)ARAT BE - ARAT RERR/BE 100 A & 5@
Walker International Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Wholesaling of footwear 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Footwear Limited company
BERREXERAF BE ARAT HEER 100 A2 & @
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33 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

MERAE (&)
Place of incorporation
and kind of Principal activities and Particulars of issued
Name of company legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
RNREMH AMREHREREREN IEXBRELHREE CRITRFFHE FristE s
2016 2015
Walker Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
& BRRA REZR,/BE 100 R E R
Walker Shop Footwear Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding and 500,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited company retailing of footwear shares
in Hong Kong
& BRRA BRERRRTEER /EE 500,000,000 1% L @Ak
BRZEFEREF(LB)ER  The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ US$200,000 100% 100%
NG| owned enterprise limited the PRC
Walker Group (Shanghai) liability company
Company Limited"
hENEBECEFRAR TEEE/TE 200,000 % 7T
HMAREEE S (IER)BRAE  The PRC, wholly foreign- Trading of footwear in  HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
owned enterprise limited the PRC
liability company
hEIEBECEERAR BEEEE/TE 1,000,000 77T
BMABESERARF The PRC, wholly foreign- Trading of footwear in HK$1,500,000 100% 100%
owned enterprise limited the PRC
liability company
hENEBECEFRAR BEEEE/TE 1,500,000 ¢
f The English names of certain companies represent the best f ETRALMIEARATE  BRRXA
effort by the management of the Group in translating their #m)}$%€i§}§%jj§%%a£%/&ﬁ¢x
Chinese names as they do not have official English names. AR EA -
As legal requirement, all companies established in the PRC BRIBZERTE RPBERSEKLIZHAEA
and Taiwan have adopted 31 December as their accounting NAIBRM12 831 A AL EEHRRETH
date for statutory reporting purpose. All other companies HFTEHMARIERMNIAIIAREY
have adopted 31 March as their financial year end date. WEEEFLHEH -
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34

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
MBRRRBBRER

(a)

(b)

Proposed subscription of new shares

On 29 April 2016, the Group has entered into the
Memorandum of Understanding with A.C. Pavia
pursuant to which A.C. Pavia has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for up to 64,140,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$1.233 per share.

The proposed subscription is not subject to
Shareholders’ approval as the Subscription Shares will
be issued under the General Mandate. The Company is
negotiating with A.C. Pavia for the signing of a formal
subscription agreement at a date no later than 31 July
2016 or such a later date mutually agreed by both
parties.

As at the date of this report, the transaction has not yet
been completed.

Issuance of convertible bonds

On 24 June 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Quam Securities Company
Limited (the “Subscribers”), pursuant to which the
Subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe for
and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
the convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 to be issued by the
Company.

Under the terms and conditions of the Bonds, the
Bonds will bear coupon interest at the rate of 6% per
annum. The Bonds are convertible into new shares at
a conversion price of HK$1.81 per share (subject to
adjustment). The maturity of the Bonds will be the date
falling on the fourth anniversary of the date of issue of
the Bonds.

As at the date of this report, all the completion
conditions of such issuance of convertible bond have
been fulfilled as of the date of the approval of the
financial statements. The proceeds from the issuance of
the convertible bond are expected to be received in July
2016.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFHBEHRE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

meERER
For the year ended 31 March
HZ3A3HLEEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue & 840,658 1,090,668 1,299,154 1,375,256 1,451,495
Cost of sales SHERAR (357,342) (473,751) (616,940) (555,810) (600,476)
Gross profit E 483,316 616,917 682,214 819,446 851,019
Operating expenses KEE A (642,913) (719,836) (909,209) (919,798) (874,917)
Other gains/(losses), net Hinliezs/(&518) - #ME 9,454 10,388 (772) 1,246 4,514
Other income HAb A 4,277 7,035 12,029 7,341 12,515
Operating loss REER (145,866) (85,496) (215,738) (91,765) (6,869)
Finance costs, net WEER - FE (524) (489) (332) (181) (439)
Loss before KRetFEHAIER
income tax (146,390) (85,985) (216,070) (91,946) (7,308)
Income tax expense FTiSHif= (656) (2,415) (13,902) (3,363) (4,258)
Loss for the year rEEEER (147,046) (88,400) (229,972) (95,309) (11,566)
Attributable to: BE1L
Equity holders of the Company A2 AIEZEE A (146,044) (87,420) (227,851) (92,826) (9,713)
Non-controlling interests FEE R (1,002) (980) (2,121) (2,483) (1,853)
(147,046) (88,400) (229,972) (95,309) (11,566)
Dividends KRE — — — — —
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFHBEHRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRRE
As at 31 March
M3HA31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET & &
ASSETS g
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment %)% - BiE k& & 29,252 34,942 40,386 52,064 60,520
Investment properties WEME — — 3,579 1,013 1,045
Intangible assets BVEE 1,873 2,570 4,605 45,339 64,953
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSHEE - 6,091 9,547 19,355 19,124
Available-for-sale financial AftHESREE
assets — — — 39,759 42,145
Long-term deposits R#RE 12,588 10,995 14,781 16,336 18,850
.. LA 54598 _ . 72,898 173,866 _ 206,637
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 223,446 242,388 320,393 444,870 470,672
Trade receivables [EWE 5 F0E 72,939 115,024 119,636 152,446 148,543
Deposits, prepayments and B EAREREMD
other receivables JE YRR y 27,081 40,044 50,043 53,858 58,588
Financial assets at fair value ~ #&AFEFABZZ
through profit or loss TREE — — — — 22,699
Tax recoverable A U Bl I8 — — — 86 86
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEIER 41,039 94,939 107,044 104,179 95,552
364,505 492,395 597,116 755,439 796,140
Assets held for sale BEELEEE 2,110 5,022 — — —
e SOGOISN 497417 597,116 785,439 796,140
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities it R=Ri
Trade payables JEE 558 (104,026) (101,396) (128,095) (161,679) (156,016)
Accruals and other payables — [EzT & F K E (e
#IA (41,129) (53,193) (71,854) (73,741) (72,623)
Borrowings BE (44,920) (25,040) (5,260) (5,400) (6,075)
Obligation under finance lease &7 E&iE (106) (108) (106) — (53)
Tax payable ANEAE! (1,102) (1,001) (3,108) (1,793) (1,800)
(191,283)  (180,736)  (208,423)  (242,613)  (236,567)
Netcurrentassets = HRBEEFE 175332 316,681 388,693 512,826 559,573 _
Total assets less current EELERRBDAR
_Vabilitles ... 21,0457 371,279 . 461,591 _ | 686,692 766,210
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Obligation under finance lease & 1A S (9) (115) (221) — —
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ ELFEREE (351) (5,990) (5,989) (4,456) (2,940)
U (360) (6,105 _ _(6,210) _ __  (4,456) __ _ (2,940)
Net assets EERE 218,685 365,174 455,381 682,236 763,270
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves AR KGR
Share capital % 64,136 62,356 62,356 62,356 62,356
Reserves 1] 156,563 305,134 394,205 620,954 702,980
220,699 367,490 456,561 683,310 765,336
Non-controlling interests Pl (2,014) (2,316) (1,180) (1,074) (2,066)
Total equity ERAHE 218,685 365,174 455,381 682,236 763,270
Walker Group Holdings Limited
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